
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 

Outcome Statements 

 
I. Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 

 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 

 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

September 8, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Mike Wendland – Woodside Bible 

Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Proclamation – International Day of Peace – September 21, 2008 – 
Presented to Pastor Manisha Dostert, St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church/ Co-
Chair International Day of Peace Event ............................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast 
Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), Section 
23 – B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731) 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Postponed Items 2 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None 
Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: None Scheduled 2 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: Downtown Development Authority (b) City Council Nominations: 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District Study Committee; Historical 
Commission; and Parks & Recreation Board 2 

E-3 Informational Brochure for the November 2008 General Election 4 

E-4 Proposed Resolution to Designate John R Road, from 14 Mile Road to Big Beaver 
Road as George W. Suarez Gentleman’s Highway 5 

E-5 Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance 6 

CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 7 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 7 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 8 

a) International Day of Peace – September 21, 2008............................................... 8 

b) Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan 110
th

 Anniversary – 
September 8, 2008 ............................................................................................... 8 

c) National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month – September, 2008 ......... 8 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 8 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Street Light 
Installation/Replacement ...................................................................................... 8 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Sole Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Fire Hose Testing ....................................................................... 8 



 

 

 -  -  

F-5 Private Agreement for Granite City Food and Brewery – Project No. 08.911.3 9 

F-6 Application for Transfer of Class C License to Somerset Collection Limited 
Partnership 9 

F-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – August 20, 2008 9 

F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way – Bryden Land Co., 
LLC – Sidwell #88-20-15-201-041 10 

F-9 Citizen Petition Initiated Ballot Language Ratification to Correct Typographical 
Error as Noted by the State of Michigan Attorney General’s Office 10 

F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Wattles Road Improvements, 
Bristol to Worthington, Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #20 – Sidwell #88-20-23-
100-072 – Russell F. Hadley and Jeanette Hadley 11 

F-11 Agreement between City of Troy and Troy School District for NPDES Permit 11 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 12 

a) Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – CJ Mahoney’s, 2511 
Livernois – September 22, 2008......................................................................... 12 

b) The ProMetal RCT, LLC, 2341 Alger – Request for Industrial Development 
District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC) – September 22, 2008 ........................................................... 12 

c) Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer – Request for Industrial 
Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – September 22, 2008 ......................................... 12 

d) Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc., 1725 John R – Request for Industrial 
Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – September 22, 2008 ......................................... 12 

G-2 Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 12 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 12 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 12 



 

 

 -  -  

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 12 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 12 

REPORTS: 12 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 12 

a) Traffic Committee/Final – April 16, 2008 ............................................................ 12 
b) Youth Council/Final – May 28, 2008 ................................................................... 12 
c) Historic District Commission/Final – June 16, 2008 ........................................... 12 

d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 2, 2008 ........................................ 12 

e) Historic District Commission/Final – July 15, 2008 ............................................. 12 

f) Traffic Committee/Final – July 16, 2008 ............................................................. 12 
g) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – July 22, 2008 ........................................ 12 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 29, 2008 .................................................. 12 
i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 12, 2008 ...................................... 12 

j) Planning Commission/Draft – August 12, 2008 .................................................. 12 
k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 19, 2008 ............................................. 12 

l) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – August 26, 2008 ................................... 12 
m) Youth Council/Draft – August 27, 2008 .............................................................. 12 

J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 12 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter to Ann Blizzard from Ann O’Neill Commending Junior Lifeguard Course 
Instructors Kyle Curry and Daina Wolner ........................................................... 13 

b) Letter to Carol Anderson from Sandy Kush Commending Jake Pilat and 
Aaron Spokaeski for Assistance with Golf Outing .............................................. 13 

c) Memorandum to Chief Craft from Lt. Hay Regarding Phone Call from Diane 
Jones in Appreciation of the Compassion of Sgt. Kowalski and Officers 
Livingston and Rockafellow ................................................................................ 13 

d) Letter to Chief Craft from Gregory Harless, President FBI National Academy 
Associates – Michigan Chapter, Commending the Efforts of Sgt. Bjork, 
Officers Fitzpatrick and Kaptur and Lynn McDaniels during Recent Seminars .. 13 

e) Letter of Thanks to Troy City Council from Mikayla and Karen Anderson 
Regarding the Sponsorship of the Miss Troy and Little Miss Troy Pageants ..... 13 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 13 

J-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Department of Attorney General 
Regarding Proposed Charter Amendment by Initiatory Petition 13 



 

 

 -  -  

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Office of the Governor Regarding 
Proposed Charter Amendment by Initiatory Petition 13 

STUDY ITEMS: 13 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 13 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 13 

CLOSED SESSION: 14 

L-1 Closed Session 14 

RECESSED 14 

RECONVENED 14 

ADJOURNMENT 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

Monday, September 22, 2008 ................................................................................. 15 
1. Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – CJ Mahoney’s, 2511 

Livernois ............................................................................................................. 15 
2. The ProMetal RCT, LLC, 2341 Alger – Request for Industrial Development 

District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC) ................................................................................................ 15 

3. Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer – Request for Industrial 
Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) .............................................................................. 15 

4. Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc., 1725 John R – Request for Industrial 
Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) .............................................................................. 15 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, September 22, 2008 Regular City Council .............................................. 15 

Monday, October 6, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 15 
Monday, October 20, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................. 15 
Monday, November 10, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 15 

Monday, November 24, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 15 
Monday, December 1, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................. 15 
Monday, December 15, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 15 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Mike Wendland – Woodside 

Bible Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Proclamation – International Day of Peace – September 21, 2008 – Presented to Pastor 
Manisha Dostert, St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church/ Co-Chair International Day of Peace 
Event 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast 

Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), Section 23 

– B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731)  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from B-1 to H-S, File Number Z-731, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Certified Survey;  
 
WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, and is compatible 
with surrounding zoning districts and land uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The rezoning is recommended for approval by the Planning Commission; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from B-1 to H-S; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None 

Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: None Scheduled 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: Downtown Development Authority (b) City Council Nominations: 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District Study Committee; Historical 

Commission; and Parks & Recreation Board    

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

a) Mayoral Nominations 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  

 
Downtown Development Authority  
Appointed by Mayor (13-Regular) 4-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2012 

  
 Term Expires 09/30/2012 

 
Yes: 
No: 

 
b) City Council Nominations 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 

 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 11/01/2011* 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

*NOTE: Correction made to term expiration date. 

 

Animal Control Appeal Board  
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 2 & 3-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011; 3-Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011; 3-Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011; 3-Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011; 3-Year Term 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2010; 2-Year Term 

 

Historic District Study Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) Ad Hoc; (2) Historic District Commission; (1) Local Historic 
Preservation Organization 
 Ad Hoc 

 

Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/2011 

 

Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term; Troy School Board (1) 1-Year Term; Troy Daze 
Committee (1) 1-Year Term; Adv. Committee for Senior Citizens (1) 1-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 
 Term Expires 09/30/2011 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Informational Brochure for the November 2008 General Election 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the informational brochure prepared 
by City Management to be distributed to all households with registered voters in Troy in 
advance of the November 2008 general election. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
  

E-4 Proposed Resolution to Designate John R Road, from 14 Mile Road to Big Beaver 

Road as George W. Suarez Gentleman’s Highway 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, George W. Suarez, the late Oakland County Commissioner from District #24 and 
our friend was a man who spent his life in the service of his neighbors, community and Oakland 
County as a whole;  
 
WHEREAS, George W. Suarez served the City of Troy as an Oakland County Board of 
Commissioner after being elected in 1998;   
 
WHEREAS, George W. Suarez served the Madison Heights area as a member of the Knights 
of Columbus Father Heary Council; the VFW North end Post 140; was on the Board of 
Directors of the Boys and Girls Club of South Oakland County; and was deeply involved at his 
beloved St. Vincent Ferrer Catholic Church, and there he served as a Eucharistic Minister, 
especially helping out the handicapped to make sure all parishioners could get communion, 
while also serving with the usher board;   
 
WHEREAS, During his entire time in public service, George W. Suarez was highly regarded as 
a man who made very good decisions for his constituents, was even-handed in running 
meetings, and listened to all points of view – even those with which he strongly disagreed;  
 
WHEREAS, Throughout all the ups and downs that surrounded him in his public life, during 
good times and bad, during calm discussions and heated ones, George W. Suarez always 
remained a gentleman, a man who had good rapport with colleagues of both political parties, 
was extremely well liked by all he met, and in the words of Madison Heights Mayor Edward 
Swanson was “a class act”; and  
 
WHEREAS, One of the legacies of George W. Suarez was his success in improving the roads 
in District 24 – not just in Madison Heights, but in the portions of Troy and Royal Oak which he 
also served; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City of Troy hereby joins the Oakland County Board of 

Commissioners in DESIGNATING John R Road, from 14 Mile Road to Big Beaver Road, as 
GEORGE W. SUAREZ GENTLEMAN’S HIGHWAY, and this new designation will last until 
December 31, 2008, at which time the street signs with the name “George W. Suarez 

Gentleman’s Highway” will be PRESENTED to Mr. Suarez’s family. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance 
 

(a) Resolution to Add Chapter 91 – Massage Facility License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to add Chapter 91, 
Massage Facility License, to the Troy City Code, as recommended by City Administration, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds Required, 

Section 60.03, as recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(c) Resolution to Repeal Chapter 98 – Massage Parlors 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REPEALS Chapter 98, Massage Parlors, Sections 
98.15.01 through 98.15.06. 
 
Yes: 
No:  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of August 25, 2008 as submitted. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 

a) International Day of Peace – September 21, 2008  

b) Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan 110
th

 Anniversary – September 8, 
2008  

c) National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month – September, 2008  
   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Street Light 

Installation/Replacement                  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 2, 2006, a contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment, transportation 
service, and traffic controls to provide two (2) year requirements for street, parking lot, and 
athletic field light installation and replacement services with an option to renew for one 
additional year was awarded to the sole bidder, Harlan Electric Company of Rochester Hills, 
Michigan (Resolution #2006-10-381-E-4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, Harlan Electric Company has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract with Harlan Electric Company to provide street light installation and 
replacement services under the same prices, terms, and conditions for one year at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened September 13, 2006, to expire September 30, 2009. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Sole Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Fire Hose Testing                  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all equipment, labor 
and materials to provide two (2) year requirements of fire hose testing with an option to renew 
for one (1) additional year for the City of Troy Fire Department, Independence Township Fire 
Department and participating MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network) Purchasing 
Cooperative Members to the sole bidder meeting specifications, Fire Catt, LLC of Troy, MI, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened August 25, 2008, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting to expire June 30, 2010; and   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 

F-5 Private Agreement for Granite City Food and Brewery – Project No. 08.911.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Dunham Capital 
Management LLC, for the installation of water main and sanitary manhole on the site and in the 

adjacent right of way, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Application for Transfer of Class C License to Somerset Collection Limited 

Partnership 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Somerset Collection Limited Partnership, to transfer ownership of 2007 Class C licensed 
business located in escrow  at 2801 W. Big Beaver, Somerset Collection, Suite J-230, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County, from Sebastian’s LTD; with license to be held in escrow; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

F-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – August 20, 2008 
 

(a) Replacement of old NO OUTLET Sign and Installation of an Additional Sign at 

Lancer Court and Babcock Drive    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED to replace the old “No 
Outlet” sign with a new, more visible sign and that a second “No Outlet” sign be installed on the 
opposite corner, at Lancer Court and Babcock Drive. 
 

(b) Changes on Maple Road at Fire Station #4    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That with the approval of the Road Commission for Oakland County, Traffic 

Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED to install two signs on Maple Road at Fire Station 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

#4, “Do Not Enter” and “Authorized Vehicles Only” on one post on each side of the west 
driveway; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That with the approval of the Road Commission for Oakland 

County, Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED to install “Do Not Block Driveway” 
sign on Maple Road, with yellow lights (if possible) blinking from 6:00 a.m.to 9:00 a.m., Monday 
through Friday, on the east side of the west driveway of Fire Station #4; and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That with the approval of the Road Commission for Oakland 

County, Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED to remove “Fire Department Parking 
Only” signs at Fire Station #4. 

 

(c) Installation of NO U-TURN Signs on Northfield Parkway between Durand Drive and 

the Northerly Driveway to Troy High School    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-08- 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED to install “No U-Turn” 
signs on Northfield Parkway between Durand Drive and the northerly driveway to Troy High 
School. 
 

F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way – Bryden Land Co., 

LLC – Sidwell #88-20-15-201-041 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-way from 
property owner Bryden Land Co., LLC, having Sidwell # 88-20-15-201-041; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Citizen Petition Initiated Ballot Language Ratification to Correct Typographical 

Error as Noted by the State of Michigan Attorney General’s Office  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES the language for placement on the 
November 4, 2008 Election ballot, the following ballot question to confirm that the typographical 
error, as noted by the State of Michigan Attorney General’s Office, is correct to mirror the 
language as presented on the citizen initiated petition submittal as follows:  
 

AN INITIATORY PETITION TO AMEND THE TROY CITY 

CHARTER BY ADDING SECTION 9.16.5 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation be added 
to the Troy City Charter as follows:  

 
“Section 9.16.5. The Council shall not increase the millage rate 
imposed pursuant to Section 9.16 of this charter above a current rate 
actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the increased rate 
shall be first approved by a majority of the City electors voting on the 
question.”? 
Yes ___ No ___ 
 

Yes: 
No:  
 

F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Wattles Road Improvements, 

Bristol to Worthington, Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #20 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-

072 – Russell F. Hadley and Jeanette Hadley  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Russell F. Hadley and Jeanette Hadley, husband and wife, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-072, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington in the amount of $63,000.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-11 Agreement between City of Troy and Troy School District for NPDES Permit  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement allowing the Troy 
School District to nest under the City of Troy’s NPDES Permit and detailing the responsibilities 

of the City of Troy and the Troy School District, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and Clerk to 

execute the Agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – CJ Mahoney’s, 2511 Livernois – 
September 22, 2008  

b) The ProMetal RCT, LLC, 2341 Alger – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) 
and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – September 
22, 2008  

c) Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer – Request for Industrial Development District 
(IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – 
September 22, 2008  

d) Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc., 1725 John R – Request for Industrial Development District 
(IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – 
September 22, 2008 

 

G-2 Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 

   

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Traffic Committee/Final – April 16, 2008 

b) Youth Council/Final – May 28, 2008 

c) Historic District Commission/Final – June 16, 2008  

d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 2, 2008  

e) Historic District Commission/Final – July 15, 2008  

f) Traffic Committee/Final – July 16, 2008 

g) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – July 22, 2008  

h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 29, 2008  

i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 12, 2008 

j) Planning Commission/Draft – August 12, 2008  

k) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 19, 2008  

l) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – August 26, 2008  

m) Youth Council/Draft – August 27, 2008 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 
  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter to Ann Blizzard from Ann O’Neill Commending Junior Lifeguard Course 
Instructors Kyle Curry and Daina Wolner 

b) Letter to Carol Anderson from Sandy Kush Commending Jake Pilat and Aaron 
Spokaeski for Assistance with Golf Outing  

c) Memorandum to Chief Craft from Lt. Hay Regarding Phone Call from Diane Jones in 
Appreciation of the Compassion of Sgt. Kowalski and Officers Livingston and 
Rockafellow  

d) Letter to Chief Craft from Gregory Harless, President FBI National Academy Associates 
– Michigan Chapter, Commending the Efforts of Sgt. Bjork, Officers Fitzpatrick and 
Kaptur and Lynn McDaniels during Recent Seminars  

e) Letter of Thanks to Troy City Council from Mikayla and Karen Anderson Regarding the 
Sponsorship of the Miss Troy and Little Miss Troy Pageants   

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Department of Attorney General 

Regarding Proposed Charter Amendment by Initiatory Petition 

 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Office of the Governor Regarding 

Proposed Charter Amendment by Initiatory Petition 

   

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 

whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e)- Papadelis v. Troy; MCL 15.268 (h)- MCL 15.243 (1); and MCL 15.268 (a)- 
Continuance of Performance Evaluation of City Attorney.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

RECESSED 

 

RECONVENED 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  September 8, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, September 22, 2008 
1. Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – CJ Mahoney’s, 2511 Livernois  
2. The ProMetal RCT, LLC, 2341 Alger – Request for Industrial Development District 

(IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC)  
3. Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer – Request for Industrial Development 

District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC)    

4.  Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc., 1725 John R – Request for Industrial Development 
District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, September 22, 2008 ................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 6, 2008 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, October 20, 2008 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, November 10, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, November 24, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 1, 2008 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 15, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 

PROCLAMATION 
INTERNATIONAL DAY OF PEACE 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2008 
 
 
WHEREAS, The opportunity for peace embraces the deepest hopes of all peoples and remains 
humanity’s guiding inspiration; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1981 the United Nations proclaimed the International Day of Peace be 
“devoted to commemorating and strengthening the ideals of peace both within and among all 
nations and peoples;” and 
 
WHEREAS, The United Nations expanded the observance of the International Day of Peace 
in 2001 to include the call for a day of global ceasefire and non-violence, and invited all nations 
and people to honor a cessation of hostilities for the duration of the Day; and 
 
WHEREAS, There is growing support within our City for the observance of the International 
Day of Peace, which affirms a vision of our world at peace, and fosters cooperation between 
individuals, organizations and nations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Global crises impel all citizens to work toward converting humanity’s noblest 
aspirations for world peace into a practical reality for future generations; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby 
proclaim September 21, 2008 as International Day of Peace in the City of Troy and urges all 
citizens to join us in recognizing this day; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council urges all government agencies, 
organizations, schools, places of worship and individuals in our City to commemorate the 
International Day of Peace including joining the Troy Interfaith Group at their celebration on 
September 21 at 3 pm at Central Woodward Christian Church to discover different faith 
traditions’ teaching of/on Peace or any other education and public awareness activities in order 
to help establish a global day of peace in our homes, our communities and between nations.  
 
Signed the 8th day of September 2008. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



 
 
DATE: September 3, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Horton’s, 

Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road (3990 Rochester Road), 
Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731) 

 
Background: 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to H-S 
at the August 12, 2008 Regular meeting.   
 

• The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non Center Commercial.  This 
classification has a secondary correlation with the Highway Service Zoning District in the 
Future Land Use Plan.  The application therefore is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 

 
• The application is consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent 

zoning districts and land uses. 
 

• The attached Planning Commission memo outlines the issues associated with this rezoning.  
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



Policy Considerations: 
 

• The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1 Special Council meeting: 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 

quality of life venues. 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 

changing and interconnected world. 
 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Minutes (draft) from the August 12, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Planning Commission report dated August 7, 2008. 
4. Letter of Opposition. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 731 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-731 Gas Station Tim Hortons Sec 23\CC Public Hearing 09 08 08.doc 
 





CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the __________ amendment to the 
Zoning District Map of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 05.20.00 of Chapter 39 is hereby amended to permit the zoning map of said code to 
be, and the same is hereby amended to delineate the subject parcel as H-S (Highway 
Service), the following described property, to wit: 
 
 T2N, R11E, NW ¼ of Section 23 
 
 Beginning at the northwest corner of said Section 23; thence S 89°15'00" E, 
 220.87 ft.;  thence S 00°06'07" W, 233.00 ft. parallel to the West line of Section 23;  
 thence N 89°15'00" W, 220.87 ft. parallel to the North line of said Section 23;  
 thence N 00°06'07" E, 233.00 ft. along the West line of said Section 23 to the Point 
 of Beginning, except the North 60 ft. and the West 43 ft. thereof for highway 
 purposes.  Containing 0.70 ac. more or less and being subject to all encumbrances 
 of record.  
 
The subject property is located on the southwest corner of Rochester Road and Wattles, 
in Section 23, within the B-1 (Local Business) zoning district, being approximately 0.70 
acres in size. 
 
Section 3.  Repeal 
 All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 



Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 Should any work, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date  
 This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, 
Troy, Michigan, on__________, the __________ day of __________, __________. 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
PUBLISHED: __________ 
 



JO
H

N 
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

KS

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
A

M
S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



RENEE

BRAHMS

BURNS

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

E WATTLES

GARWOOD

REZONING REQUEST
EX. GAS STATION / PROPOSED TIM HORTON'S RESTAURANT
SE CORNER ROCHESTER RD. & WATTLES RD. (3990 ROCHESTER RD.)
SEC. 23  (Z-731) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



RENEE

BRAHMS

BURNS

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

E WATTLES

GARWOOD

R-1C

B-3

R-1T

B-2
P-1

B-1

H-S

O-1

REZONING REQUEST
EX. GAS STATION / PROPOSED TIM HORTON'S RESTAURANT
SE CORNER ROCHESTER RD. & WATTLES RD. (3990 ROCHESTER RD.)
SEC. 23  (Z-731) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 731) – Shell Gas Station / 

Tim Horton’s Restaurant, Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road 
(3990 Rochester Road), Section 23, From B-1 (Local Business) to H-S (Highway 
Service) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the request as submitted.  He noted it is prudent 
professional community planning advice to consider acquisition and consolidation 
of abutting properties to create a larger redevelopment site.  Mr. Miller also 
identified the trend for gasoline service stations to provide retail and food service.  
Mr. Miller addressed a detailed report submitted by the Planning Department 
relating to recently approved service stations that are less than one acre in size.  
It was noted those service stations listed on the report have no drive-through 
service. 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that a potential future right of way in the area is irrelevant to 
the Planning Commission deliberation of the proposed rezoning request. 
 
Leo D. Gonzalez of CRS Commercial Real Estate Services, 550 Forest Avenue, 
Plymouth, was present to represent the petitioner.  He announced that the 
owner, Sam Beydoun of Safeway Oil, was also present, and they would like to go 
forward with the request this evening.   
 
Mr. Gonzalez gave a brief history of subject property and addressed changes in 
the operation of service stations from five to ten years ago.  He addressed the 
investment by Safeway Oil to modify existing stations that would reflect current 
service station trends and would be beneficial to the community.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Savidant announced that a letter of opposition was received in Planning 
Department today, copies of which were distributed to members prior to the 
beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
There was discussion on the proposed use with drive-through service as relates 
to lot size, lot layout, and traffic impact.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  
 
 
 

Chair Schultz reminded members that the proposed site plan should not be 
considered in the deliberation of the rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez said comments expressed this evening would be taken into 
consideration as well as the best interest of the petitioner and Safeway Oil in the 
redevelopment of the site. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-08-098 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located at the southeast corner of 
Rochester and Wattles, within Section 23, being approximately 0.7 acres in size, 
be granted.  
 
Yes: Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
No: Ullmann 
Absent: Maxwell, Tagle, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Ullmann said he has difficulties with the request. 

 



 1

DATE: August 7, 2008 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 731) – Proposed Gas 

Station / Tim Horton's, Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles 
Road (3990 Rochester Road), Section 23 – B-1 to H-S 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The application states the applicant and owner is Sam Beydoun of Safeway Oil; however, the 
owner of record is Safeway Acquisition Company LLC.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road, in 
Section 23. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 30,492 square feet or 0.70 acre in gross area.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently used as a Shell gas station with automotive service and is a legal 
nonconforming use. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
H-S Highway Service. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The Rezoning Site Plan indicates the applicant is proposing to expand the convenience 
store, including adding a Tim Horton’s restaurant with a drive-up window.  The gasoline 
pump islands and overhead canopy are to be demolished and replaced. 
 
Proposed City of Troy Right of Way Acquisition: 
The City intends to acquire a portion of the subject property for a road widening project for 
both Rochester Road and Wattles Road.  This potential right of way acquisition should not 
be considered in the Planning Commission’s rezoning recommendation. 
  



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Shopping Center. 
South: Shopping Center. 
East: Daycare Center Parking Lot and Shopping Center. 
West: Fast Food Restaurant. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 Community Business. 
South: B-3 General Business. 
East: B-1 Local Business and B-3 General Business. 
West: H-S Highway Service. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed H-S Highway Service Zoning District and 
Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 

 
Retail establishments to service the needs of the highway traveler including such 
facilities as:  drug stores, convenience food stores, gift shops, and restaurants other 
than those of the drive-in or open front store type. 

 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  Sleeping accommodations may be 
provided in conjunction with ambulance facilities. 

 
 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 New and used automobile salesroom, showroom or office. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repairs of recreational vehicles. 
 

Banks, savings and loan associations, and credit unions which may consist solely of 
drive-up facilities. 

 
 Public utility buildings and sub-stations. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 

 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants permitted within 
this district. 
 
Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within H-S districts, 
apart from restaurants. 

  



 3

Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 
establishments. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 

 
Automobile service stations for the sale of engine fuels, oil, and minor accessories 
only, and where no repair work is done, other than incidental service, but not including, 
steam cleaning, undercoating, vehicle body repair, painting, tire recapping, engine 
rebuilding, auto dismantling, upholstering, auto glass work and other such activities 
whose external effects could adversely extend beyond the property lines.  

 
Auto washes where engine fuels are sold as a significant part of the operation.   

 
Auto washes, not including the sale of engine fuels, when the entire operation is 
completely enclosed within a building or structure. 

 
Uses, other than those specified in Article 23.20.06 of the Zoning Ordinance, wherein 
drive-up service facilities are the sole use of the property. 

 
Business in the character of a drive-in restaurant. 

 
Motel or hotel. 

 
Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second hand automobiles, 
trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles. 

 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a completely 
enclosed building.   

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts both Rochester Road and Wattles Road.   
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on the 
property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S Highway Service 
Zoning District.  The rezoning application is therefore consistent with the City of Troy 
Future Land Use Plan. 
  



 4

Compliance with Location Standards 
The Location Standards for the H-S District in Article 23.40.01 of the Zoning Ordinance 
states the following: 
 
 The H-S (Highway Service) District may be applied when the application of such a 

classification is consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use plan and policies 
related thereto, or with other land use policies of the City of Troy, and therefore, on a 
limited basis, may involve the following types of areas: 

 
 23.40.02 Areas indicated on the Master Land Use Plan for non-center commercial 

use. 
 
 23.40.03 Areas within broader areas generally designated for Light Industrial use, 

where the City has established, through rezoning, areas to provide 
commercial and service uses for the surrounding Light Industrial area. 

 
The application is consistent with the Location Standards for the H-S District. 
 
Analysis of Existing Parcel Size 
The parcel is approximately 30,492 square feet or 0.70 acre in gross area.  Applicant 
indicates that the purpose of the rezoning is to allow for a gasoline service station without 
automotive repair and Tim Horton’s restaurant with a drive-up window.  Minimum parcel 
size for service stations in the H-S district is 15,000 square feet or 0.34 acre without 
automotive repair, per Article 23.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance.  Minimum parcel size for 
restaurants with a drive-up window in the H-S district is 43,560 square feet or 1.0 acre; in 
addition, 150 feet of frontage on a major thoroughfare, per Article 23.25.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
The subject property is 30,492 square feet or 0.70 acre in size and therefore would meet 
the minimum parcel size for a gasoline service station, while the subject parcel would not 
meet the 1.0 acre minimum parcel size for a restaurant with a drive-up window. 
 
City Management has a recent history of recommending approval of H-S rezoning 
requests when the application is consistent with Future Land Use Plan and compatible with 
existing land uses and zoning districts.  Intent of these recommendations was to convert 
nonconforming uses to a Use Permitted Subject To Special Use Approval.  These rezonings 
enabled service station owners the legal ability to make substantial improvements that were 
prohibited for nonconforming uses.  Attachment 2 titled Service Stations Recently Approved 
and Less Than One Acre in Size, provides a list of the service stations for the Planning 
Commission’s use.   
 
  



 5

CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. The rezoning application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan 
and compatible with abutting zoning districts and land uses.  City Management 
recommends approval of the rezoning request as submitted. 

 
2. The subject property appears small considering the full range of automobile-

oriented uses permitted in the H-S District.  If the subject property is redeveloped, it 
will require variances and produce very compact development with potential traffic 
access and circulation problems.  It is prudent professional community planning 
advice to consider acquisition and consolidation of abutting properties to create a 
larger redevelopment site.   
 

3. There is a trend for gasoline service stations to provide considerable retail and food 
service activities above and beyond the fuel sales.  Given this evolutionary role of 
becoming convenience retail centers, City Management recommends the Planning 
Commission explore revising the standards for gasoline service stations during the 
comprehensive re-write of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Service Stations Recently Approved and Less Than One Acre in Size 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z-731) 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-731 Gas Station Tim Hortons Sec 23\Shell Gas Station Tim Hortons PC Rezoning Report 08 12 08.docx 



  Prepared by: 
  City of Troy 
  Planning Department 
  August 8, 2008 
 

SERVICE STATIONS 
 

RECENTLY APPROVED 
 

AND LESS THAN ONE ACRE IN SIZE 



Location: 1602 Livernois, NE corner Maple and Livernois 
Station: Clark 
Section: 27 
Parcel Size: 15,475 square feet / 0.35 acre 
Building Size: 1,600 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Non-center Commercial 
File Number: SU 328 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 09/13/05, Attached 
 .................................................................................................................................................  
Location: 6951 Rochester, SW corner South Blvd and Rochester 
Station: Clark 
Section: 3 
Parcel Size: 19,517 square feet / 0.44 acre 
Building Size: 2,475 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Non-center Commercial 
File Number: SU 337 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 12/12/06, attached 
 .................................................................................................................................................  
Location: 5991 Livernois, SW corner Square Lake and Livernois 
Station: BP 
Section: 9 
Parcel Size: 20,370 square feet / 0.46 acre 
Building Size: 1,885 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Community Service Area 
File Number: SU 326 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 12/14/04, attached 
 .................................................................................................................................................  
Location: 1610 John R, NE corner Maple and John R 
Station: Clark 
Section: 25 
Parcel Size: 20,804 square feet / 0.47 acre 
Building Size: 1,840 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Non-center Commercial 
File Number: SU 323 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 11/09/04, attached 
 ..................................................................................................................................................  
Location: 3400 Rochester, NE corner Rochester and Charrington 
Station: Marathon 
Section: 23 
Parcel Size: 21,000 square feet / 0.48 acre 
Building Size: 1,740 square feet 
Existing Zoning: H-S 
Future Land Use Plan: Non-center Commercial 
File Number: SU 342 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval: 01/09/07, attached 













 

 

 

 

 

 

September 3, 2008 

 

 

 

Troy Planning Department      VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

500 W. Big Beaver 

Troy, MI  48084 

 

 Re:  Planning File No. Z-731 Gas Station/Tim Horton’s 

 

 

To the Powers that Be on the Troy Planning Department: 

 

 On behalf of the owners of the property located at the northeast corner of Rochester Road and 

Wattles Road, I am writing to you to express their partial opposition to the proposed Rezoning Request, 

for the property at 3990 Rochester Road, Troy, MI, which is scheduled for a public hearing before the 

Planning Department this evening.  Due to extenuating circumstances, the owners cannot attend the 

public hearing and ask that this letter be read into the minutes at the public hearing. 

 

 For the last twenty-five years, my clients have owned and operated the strip center north of the 

subject property.  During that time period, my clients have invested tens of thousands of dollars into 

improvements at the center.  Those improvements have made the center a destination location for many 

Troy residents and attracted quality tenants to the area.  One of those tenants, Ridley’s Bakery, has 

invested an extraordinary sum of money into the area, including a remodel and expansion of its existing 

space in excess of $100,000.00.  In addition, Ridley’s Bakery has brought jobs and services to the 

residents of the surrounding community.  We believe that Ridley’s Bakery, a Michigan-owned and 

operated company, will be directly and negatively impacted by the addition of a Tim Horton’s store 

across the street.  While my clients understand that their position may not have any legal basis, they 

implore you to find in their favor so that Tim Horton’s, a national tenant, does not jeopardize the 

livelihood of another Michigan-owned company.    

 

 Given the investment that Ridley’s Bakery has made and continues to make in the City of Troy, 

and the investment that Ridley’s Bakery has made to my client’s center, we firmly believe that the 

rezoning request should be denied with respect to the Tim Horton’s operations.  Moreover, my clients 

oppose any request to install a drive-thru at the property, since such a use would create safety and 

nuisance concerns.  With regard to the Highway Services rezoning request, my clients do not oppose that 

request.   

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

John Spain, Esq. 

Corporate Counsel 

 



 
 

September 4, 2008 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Informational Brochure for the November 2008 General Election 
  
 
Attached is an informational brochure prepared by City management to distribute to all households 
with registered voters in Troy in advance of the General Election in November.   
 
As directed by Council, staff is submitting the informational brochure to Council for approval of the 
content in advance of distributing to the voters of Troy. 
 
For reference, absentee ballots are anticipated to be mailed September 29, 2008.  In the past the 
City has endeavored to send out and provide informational brochures in advance of the absentee 
ballots mailing in an effort to avoid late distribution to absentee voters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\09.08.08 – Informational Brochure for the November 2008 General Election 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



1 
 

 

  
 

INFORMATIONAL 

BROCHURE 

 
 
 
 
 

 GENERAL ELECTION DATES TO REMEMBER 
 

Election Day 
 
 

 
Last Day to Register to Vote 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 THE BALLOT QUESTION 
 

Charter Amendment Proposal 08-1:  An initiatory petition to amend the Troy  
City Charter by adding Section 9.16.5. 
 
Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation be added to the Troy City Charter as follows:  
 
“Section 9.16.5.  The Council shall not increase the millage rate imposed pursuant to Section 9.16 of this 
charter above a current rate actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the increased rate shall first be 
approved by a majority of the City electors voting on the question.”?  Yes ___ or No ___?  
 
 
YES A YES vote means that the 2009 City of 

Troy maximum allowable Operating and 
Capital Millage Rate will be reduced from the 
Headlee limited 8.5076 mills to a rate that 
shall not be higher than 8.1000 mills.  Based 
on a letter from the Attorney General’s 
office, the 2010 and beyond millage rates 
are unknown at this time. 

NO A NO vote means that the City Council may by 
Charter authorization levy up to a Headlee 
reduced maximum of 8.5076 mills.  (Currently 
the City Council has approved a levy of 8.1000 
mills.) 
 

 

 

Tuesday, November 4, 2008                  
Polls are open from 7:00 AM until 8:00 PM 

Monday, October 6, 2008 
The City Clerk’s Office will be open on Saturday, 
November 1, 2008 from 10:00 AM until 2:00 PM 
for absentee balloting 

 

City Clerk’s Office 
500 W. Big Beaver 

Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3316 

elections@troymi.gov 

mailto:elections@troymi.gov


2 
 

 

  
 

INFORMATIONAL 

BROCHURE 
 

 

 ABOUT THE INITIATORY PETITION 
 
A citizen- initiated petition proposing that the City 
Charter be amended was circulated in Troy and 
received the required 2,751 signatures to place a 
proposed amendment to the Troy City Charter on the 
November 4, 2008 General Election ballot.  
 
As required by Michigan Law, the submittal was 
forwarded to the Governor for her approval of the 
ballot language. The proposed language was also 
submitted to the Attorney General’s Office for review. 

Communications from both offices have noted an 
inconsistency with Public Act 279 of 1909, MCL 117.1 
to MCL 117.38 (Michigan Compiled Laws).  The 
Attorney General’s Office concluded that the proposal 
is not consistent with this Public Act.   However, 
Section 22 of the Home Rule City Act provides that all 
amendments submitted by initiatory petition are 
required to be submitted to the voters.   
 
The Governor did not approve the ballot language. 

 

 QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS  
 
Does this ballot proposal limit all of the millage 
levied by the City of Troy? 
 
The City of Troy currently levies 8.1000 mills for 
Operating and Capital; 0.6800 mills for Refuse 
collection; and 0.5000 mills for Debt Service, for a 
total of 9.2800 mills.  This ballot proposal only 
affects the 8.1000 mills levied for Operating and 
Capital. 
 
Will this charter amendment have an effect on the 
City’s AAA bond rating? 
 
The City has been advised by our financial advisors 
that our AAA bond rating would be in jeopardy if 
this amendment passes which would result in 
higher interest rates on future borrowings and limit 
our savings on any potential refunding issues.  
 
How can the millage rate be increased in future 
years? 
 
If this proposal passes, the millage rate could be 
increased by a City Council initiated ballot question 
that is approved by a majority of registered City of 
Troy voters. The millage rate could be increased in 
future years if the City Charter is amended by the 
voters. 
 
 
 

How would this proposal affect the budget process? 
 
The millage rate is determined by dividing the revenue 
necessary for Operations/Capital by the total taxable 
value of the City.  One effect of the proposed 
amendment on budget preparation would be receipt of 
the City levy information and timing of election dates.  
 
As part of the millage rate determination, the City 
Assessor provides the amount of total taxable value 
for the fiscal year.  The Assessor certifies the total 
taxable value at the end of March. The total taxable 
value is a crucial number in the development of the 
City’s budget. Once the total taxable value is known 
the millage rate can be determined and thus the City 
budget is presented for a vote by the City Council by 
the third Monday in May, as required by the City 
Charter.  
 
Should the millage rate require a confirmation or 
increase, passage would be required by the voters. 
There is insufficient time to place the question to the 
voters prior to the City Charter mandated budget 
adoption date.  Michigan Election Law provides 4 
dates annually on which a Special Election may be 
called. Those dates are the 3rd Tuesday in February 
and the 1st Tuesday after the 1st Monday in May, 
August and November. The estimated cost of a 
Special Election is $75,000 (with consolidated 
precincts) which would be born entirely by the City of 
Troy. 

City Clerk’s Office 
500 W. Big Beaver 

Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3316 

elections@troymi.gov 

mailto:elections@troymi.gov


3 
 

 

 

  
 

INFORMATIONAL 

BROCHURE 
 

 
 QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS, CONTINUED  

 
What millages make up my total millage rate? 
 
The total property tax bill is divided into 8 different 
taxing entities. Those entities are: 
 
City of Troy                                     9.2800 mills 
Troy School District;                       9.4156 mills 
State Education Tax                       6.0000 mills 
Oakland County Government         4.6461 mills 
Oakland County Transportation  
   Authority (SMART)           0.5900 mills 
Oakland Intermediate Schools        3.3690 mills 
Oakland County Community  
   College                   1.5844 mills 
Oakland County Zoo Tax                0.1000 mills        

 
 

 
 

 ABOUT THE VOTING EQUIPMENT 
 
The City of Troy will be utilizing the M100 optical 
scan voting devices shown below in all precincts 
and for Absent Voters, effective with the November 
4, 2008 City Regular General Election. To vote, fill 
in the oval as shown below. 
    

 
 
 
 
      
 
 
 

 
 
 
Please contact the City Clerk’s Office if you have 
any questions or if you would like a demonstration 
of the equipment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Clerk’s Office 
500 W. Big Beaver 

Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3316 

elections@troymi.gov 

mailto:elections@troymi.gov


4 
 

 

  
 

INFORMATIONAL 

BROCHURE 
 

 
 

 

City Clerk’s Office 
500 W. Big Beaver 

Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3316 

elections@troymi.gov 

mailto:elections@troymi.gov


campbellld
Text Box
E-04







  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: September 3, 2008 
SUBJECT: Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance 

 

 

  During the past few years, the City has received a number of complaints about 
our “Massage Parlor Ordinance” provisions, which are contained in Chapter 98 of the 
Criminal Code.  Under the existing provisions, massage therapy services are allowed only 
in very limited circumstances.  However, with the adoption of Troy’s Adult Use Business 
Ordinance, some of the protections provided by the Massage Parlor Ordinance are no 
longer necessary.   There is now an increased acceptance of massage therapy as an 
alternative approach to the prevention of illness.  There are some spas and other facilities 
in the City that desire to offer massage services.   
 

We have met over the past year with the Assistant City Manager/Economic 
Development Services, the Planning Director, Director of Building and Zoning, 
representatives from the City Clerk’s office and the Police Department to study the current 
trends in massage therapy.  It was our intent to make sure that any licensing requirements 
of a massage ordinance would provide adequate protection for individuals that were using 
massage therapy services, while simultaneously expanding the opportunity to offer such 
services in reputable facilities.     
 

The state does not currently regulate massage businesses or individual massage 
therapists, even though there have been several bills introduced by different legislators.  
This interest in massage therapy is due, in part, to the high standards of training and 
experience that have been implemented in the massage therapy schools and 
associations.  In this proposed ordinance, we have required similar standards for licensing 
of massage facilities to match the criteria of accreditated massage therapy schools.  We 
have also contacted two local reputable Troy massage schools, Blue Heron Academy of 
Healing Arts and Science and Carnegie Institute, for input and comment.  According to 
some of the faculty members who reviewed the proposed Massage Facility License 
ordinance, the criteria required by the ordinance would promote quality massage therapy 
businesses and allow qualified individual to perform massage therapy services.  
 
  A copy of the proposed Massage Facility License is attached, as well as proposed 
amendments to Chapter 60, (fees for the Massage Facility Licenses).  If Council adopts 
the proposed Massage Facility License ordinance, then Chapter 98, Sections 98.15.01 
through 98.15.06 would need to be repealed.   
 
  Although there was some discussion at the August 25, 2008 City Council meeting, 
this proposed ordinance is the same as the draft that was presented as an informational 
item at that time.  Although there are no Michigan cases directly on point, there are cases 
in other jurisdictions that held that the automatic and permanent preclusion of a business 
license, based on a conviction, is a deprivation of due process rights.  It is for this reason 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



that the proposed ordinance allows for some administrative discretion in the denial of a 
massage license for those individuals who have a conviction that is at least 10 years old.  
The grant of a license in these cases would be based on the results of the police 
department’s background investigation and recommendation.   By having an 
administrative review, the business license applicant avoids the public disclosure that 
would otherwise be required by a City Council hearing at a public meeting.  It is our 
recommendation that the proposed ordinance be approved by City Council.       
 

If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.   



 1 

 
CHAPTER 91 - MASSAGE FACILITY LICENSE 

 
1. Definitions: 
 

For the purpose of the provisions of this Chapter, the following words and phrases shall be 
construed to have the meanings herein set forth, unless it is apparent from the context that 
a different meaning is intended. 

 
(a) “Employee” means any person other than a massage therapist, who renders any 

service in connection with the operation of a Massage Facility and receives 
compensation from the operator of the business or patrons.  This includes a 
leased employee or subcontractor. 

 
(b) “Licensee” means the person to whom a license has been issued to own or 

operate a Massage Facility as defined herein. 
 
(c) “Manager” means an operator, other than a licensee, who is employed by a 

Massage Facility to act as a manager or supervisor of employees, independent 
massage therapists, or independent contractors, or is otherwise responsible for 
the operation of the business. 

 
(d) “Massage” means the treating of external parts of the body for remedial or hygienic 

purposes, consisting of stroking, kneading, rubbing, tapping, pounding, vibrating, 
or stimulating with the hands or with the aid of any mechanical or electrical 
apparatus or appliances, with or without such supplementary aids as rubbing 
alcohol, liniments, antiseptics, oils, powder, creams, lotions, ointment or other 
such similar preparations commonly used in the practice of massage, under such 
circumstances that it is reasonably expected that the person to whom the 
treatment is provided shall pay any consideration whatsoever.  For purposes of 
this Chapter, the term “bodywork” is included in the definition of massage. 

 
(e) “Massage facility” means any individual, group of individuals, person or business 

which engages in the practice of massage as defined in subsection 1(d), and 
which has a fixed place of business where any person, firm, association, 
partnership, limited liability company or corporation carries on any of the activities 
as defined in subsection 1(d). Massage Facility also includes a Turkish bath parlor, 
steam bath, sauna, magnetic healing institute, health club, health spa, or physical 
fitness club or business that offers massages on occasion or incidental to its 
principal operation.  

 
(f) “Massage therapist” means any person who engages in the practice of massage 

as defined in subsection 1(d). Use of the word “massage therapist” in this Chapter 
shall include massage therapist, masseurs, masseuses and all others engaged in 
massage. 

 
(g) “Massage School” means a school which is licensed by the State of Michigan 

Board of  Education as required by P.A. 148 of 1943 (MCLA 395.101, et. seq.) with 
a class hour requirement of at least 500 hours and which requires for admission 
students with a tenth grade education, which has minimum requirements of a 



 2 

continuous course of study and training consisting of studies in physiology, 
anatomy, massage theory, hydrotherapy, hygiene, ethics, and practical massage, 
and which employs as instructors one or more massage therapists meeting all of 
the following criteria:    

 
(1) Graduate of a state licensed school with a minimum of 500 hours of 

education. 
 

(2) A minimum of five years of experience as an instructor at a recognized 
school and/or massage therapist, and proof of such experience. 

 
 (3) For the purpose of this Chapter, a correspondence school or a school 

outside the United States is not a recognized school or massage school. 
 

(h) “Patron” means any person who receives a massage under such circumstances 
that it is reasonably expected that he or she shall pay money or give any other 
consideration for the massage. 

 
(i) “Person” means any individual, partnership, firm, association, joint stock company, 

limited liability company, corporation or combination of individuals or business 
entities of whatever form or character. 

 
2.        Facility License required: 
  

Except as set forth in Section 3, no person shall operate a Massage Facility without 
obtaining a valid Massage Facility License for each separate office or place of business 
address.  A Massage Facility License shall be renewed on an annual basis and cover the 
licensing period of January 1st to December 31st of each year. 

 
The requirement to obtain a new Massage Facility License for the remainder of the 2008 
calendar year is waived for those massage facilities that are properly licensed under the 
City’s previous licensing requirements.  However, commencing January 1, 2009, all 
massage facilities are required to comply with the provisions of this ordinance.   

 
3. Exemptions for Massage Facility Licensing: 
 

The following facilities are exempt from the requirement of a Massage Facility License:    
 

(a) Hospitals, medical facilities, medical offices where massage therapists engage in 
the performance of massage under the supervision of and in conjunction with the 
professional practices of physicians, surgeons, chiropractors, osteopaths, physical 
therapists or other recognized medical professionals who are fully licensed to 
practice their respective professions in the State of Michigan.  

 
(b)  Hospitals, medical facilities, medical offices, or other facilities where nurses who 

are registered and licensed under the laws of the State of Michigan perform 
massages. 

 
(c)      A facility which, as its primary function, is a gymnasium, fitness center with weight  
           lifting/ body building/ body strengthening equipment,  a sports training facility, or a  

                      sports or fitness facility in which massage therapy is an integral part of the  



 3 

                      relaxation and/or treatment of muscle groups for sports or fitness conditioning. 
 
 (d)       A facility, including a school of cosmetology and/or beauty school that administers 
                       massage to the face, head, neck and shoulders only as part of cosmetic or 
                       beautifying processes. 
 

(e)  A massage therapist or a group of massage therapists who administer massage 
for not more than 10 days in any calendar year at the same location and/or 
address, as long as there is no sale of merchandise at the temporary location other 
than merchandise directly related to massage.  Individual massage therapists shall 
register with the Clerk, as provided in Section 4.  

 
4.         Massage Therapist Registration; Fee. 
 

No individual shall act as a massage therapist in the City of Troy without first registering 
with the City Clerk and paying the registration fee as set out in Chapter 60. The 
registration fee shall be paid on an annual basis and cover the registration period from 
January 1st to December 31st of each year.  An individual massage therapist administering 
massage at a location other than a Massage Facility shall only sell merchandise related to 
massage. 

 
A massage therapist must complete a registration form, which will be kept in the ordinary 
course of business by the City Clerk.  To satisfy the registration requirement the massage 
therapist must fully complete the registration form provided by the City Clerk, and must 
supply the following information under oath:   
 

A. The full name, home address, telephone number and date of birth of the 
massage therapist; 

B. A copy of the massage therapist’s driver’s license with photo identification or 
other government issued photo identification;  

C. The name and address of the massage school attended by the massage 
therapist; 

D. Proof that the massage therapist has completed the required course of study 
from a massage school that meets the requirements of Section 1(g) of this 
Chapter (certificate of completion).  

 
A massage therapist shall display his/her registration at all locations where massage is 
administered. 

   
5. Application for Massage Facility License; Fees: 
 

Every applicant for a license to maintain, operate or conduct a Massage Facility shall file 
an application with the City Clerk’s office upon the form provided by the City of Troy and 
pay the nonrefundable application investigation fee, which is set forth in Chapter 60.  The 
applicant shall provide the following information, which shall be sworn to under oath: 

 
(a) A description of services to be provided. 

 
(b) The location, mailing address and all telephone numbers for the massage facility. 

 
(c) The name and permanent residential address of the applicant(s). 



 4 

 
(1) If the applicant is a corporation, the names and permanent residential 

addresses of each of the officers, directors and resident agents of said 
corporation and of each stockholder owning more than ten (10) percent of 
the stock of the corporation; the address of the corporation itself, if different 
from the address of the massage facility; and the name and address of a 
resident agent in Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
(2) If the applicant is a partnership, the names and permanent residential 

addresses of each of the partners and limited partners and of the 
partnership itself, if different from the address of the massage facility; and 
the name and address of a resident agent in Oakland County, Michigan. 

 
(d) The applicant’s two (2) immediately preceding addresses. 
 
(e) Proof that each individual applicant is at least eighteen (18) years of age. 

 
(f) The height, weight, sex and color of eyes and hair of each individual applicant or 

each partner of a partnership applicant. 
 

(g) A copy of identification, such as driver’s license, which bears a date of birth for 
each individual applicant or each partner for a partnership applicant, or each 
officer, director, stockholder and resident agent for a corporation applicant. 

 
(h) One front face current portrait photograph of the individual applicant(s), which is at 

least two inches by two inches (2” x 2”), and a complete set of the individual 
applicant(s) fingerprints, which shall be taken by the Chief of Police or his agent.  

 
(1)  If the applicant is a corporation, one front face current portrait photograph, 
which is  at least two inches by two inches (2” x 2”), of all officers and resident 
agents of said corporation and a complete set of the same officers’, directors’ and 
resident agents’ fingerprints, which shall be taken by the Chief of Police or his 
agent.  
 
(2)  If the applicant is a partnership, one front-face current portrait photograph, 
which is at least two inches by two inches (2” x 2”) in size of each partner, including 
a limited partner in said partnership, and a complete set of each partner or limited 
partner’s fingerprints, which shall be taken by the Chief of Police or his agents. 

 
(i) The business, occupation, or employment of the applicant(s) for the three (3) years 

immediately preceding the date of application. 
 

(j) The massage or similar business history of the applicant(s);  
 

(k) A statement of whether or not the applicant(s) currently operates or previously 
operated a massage business in this or another municipality or state; 

 
(l) A statement or whether or not the applicant(s) had a business license of any kind 

revoked or suspended and the reason for the suspension or revocation;  
 

(m) All of the individual applicant’s criminal convictions (other than misdemeanor traffic 



 5 

violations not involving a controlled substance or alcohol), and the dates of 
conviction(s), the nature of the crime(s) and court or tribunal where the matter was 
adjudicated. 

 
(1)  If the applicant is a corporation, the criminal convictions (other than 
misdemeanor traffic violations not involving a controlled substance or alcohol), and 
the dates of conviction(s), the nature of the crime(s), and the court or tribunal 
where the matter was adjudicated for all of the officers and resident agents of the 
corporation.  
 
(2)  If the applicant is a partnership, the criminal convictions (other than 
misdemeanor traffic violations not involving a controlled substance or alcohol), and 
the dates of conviction(s), the nature of the crime(s), and the court or tribunal 
where the matter was adjudicated for each partner, including a limited partner in 
the partnership.  

 
(n) The names, addresses, birth dates and driver’s license numbers of each massage 

therapist and each employee or independent contractor who is or will be employed 
in said facility.  

 
(o) The name, address, birth dates and driver’s license number of each individual who 

will be a manager, acting manager or in charge of each facility. 
 

(p) Applicant(s) must furnish a certified copy of a diploma or certificate of graduation 
from a school licensed pursuant to P.A. 148 of 1943 (MCLA 395.101, et. seq.) by 
the Michigan Board of Education or an equivalent license from another state for 
themselves and each massage therapist who may be doing massage at the 
massage facility, provided, however, that if the applicant(s) will not himself or 
herself engage in the practice of massage, he or she need not furnish such a 
diploma or certificate of graduation. 

 
(q) The name and addresses of any massage businesses facility or other facility 

owned or operated by any person whose name is required to be given in 
subsection 5(c). 

 
(r) A description of any other business(es) to be operated on the same premises or on 

adjoining premises owned or controlled by the applicant(s). 
 

(s) An authorization for the City, its agents and employees to seek information and 
conduct an investigation to verify the veracity of the information contained in the 
application and the qualifications of the applicant(s), including but not limited to 
authorization to conduct a LEIN records check of all applicants, employees, 
officers, directors, resident agents or stockholders. 

 
(t) The names, current addresses and written statements of at least three (3) bona 

fide permanent residents of the United States that the applicant is of good moral 
character. If possible, the statements must first be furnished from residents of the 
City of Troy.  If the applicant cannot provide these statements from residents of the 
City of Troy, then the statements can be provided by residents of the County of 
Oakland.  If the applicant cannot provide these statements from residents of 
Oakland County, then the statements can be from residents of the State of 



 6 

Michigan, and lastly from the rest of the United States. These statements or 
references must be from persons other than relatives and business associates. 

 
(u) Evidence of current valid premises liability, workers compensation and general 

liability insurance for the massage facility, in an amount of two hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($250,000.00) or more. 

 
(v) All information required by this section shall be provided at the applicant’s 

expense. 
 

If there is any change to the above required information from the information that is 
provided with the application, the Massage Facility licensee is required to notify the City of 
Troy of each such change within thirty (30) days after such change occurs.  Any such 
change may result in a revocation of the Massage Facility License for failure to satisfy the 
City’s license requirements.   

 
6. License procedures: 
 

(a) Any applicant for a license pursuant to this Chapter shall present to the City Clerk’s 
office the application containing the aforementioned and described information. 
Once a fully completed application has been received by the City Clerk, it shall be 
referred to the Chief of Police or his/her designee, who shall have thirty (30) days 
in which to investigate the application and the background of the applicant(s). 
Based on such investigation, the Chief of Police, or his/her designee shall render a 
recommendation as to the approval or denial of the license to the City Clerk. 

 
The Chief of Police shall recommend denial or approval of an application for 
license. In making this determination, the Chief of Police shall consider: 

 
(1) The criminal or penal history of the applicant(s), including but not limited to 

actual criminal convictions for all or each of the applicants, massage 
therapists, employees, managers and independent contractors; civil 
judgments against all or each of the applicants, massage therapists, 
employees, managers and independent contractors; the circumstances of 
those convictions or judgments; and the demeanor of the applicant, 
massage therapists, employees, managers and independent contractors 
subsequent to his or her conviction or judgment.   

 
(2) The license history of the applicant(s), including but not limited to whether 

such person(s) has previously operated in this City or State, or in another 
state under a license, and has had such license or a permit revoked or 
suspended.   

 
(b) The facility may be inspected for compliance with the requirements of this Chapter 

and compliance with all City ordinances and State laws by one of more City 
representatives, including but not limited to representatives of the Police 
Department, Fire Department, Building Department and/or Planning Department. 
Within thirty (30) days of the date of submission of a fully completed application, 
any inspection reports and recommendations as set out herein shall be forwarded 
to the City Clerk. 

 



 7 

7. Issuance of License for a Massage Facility: 
 

The City Clerk shall issue a license for a Massage Facility if all requirements for a 
Massage Facility described in this Chapter are met, unless the City Clerk determines:   

 
(a) The correct license fee has not been tendered to the City and/or, a check, or bank 

draft, given to the City has not been honored with payment upon presentation. 
 

(b) The operation, as proposed by the applicant(s), if permitted, would not comply with 
all applicable laws, including, but not limited to, the City’s building, zoning and 
health regulations. 

 
(c) The applicant(s), if an individual(s), or any of the stockholders holding more than 

ten (10) percent of the stock of the corporation; or any of the officers, directors or 
resident agents, if the applicant is a corporation; or any of the partners, including 
limited partners, if the applicant is a partnership; or the holder of any lien, of any 
nature, upon the business; and the manager or other person principally in charge 
of the operation of the business; or any employees or independent contractors has 
(have) been convicted of any of the following offenses within or without the State of 
Michigan: 

 
(1) A felony offense involving the use of force or violence upon another person.  

 
(2) A misdemeanor or felony sexual misconduct offense, including but not 

limited to prostitution.   
 

(3) A felony offense involving narcotics, dangerous drugs or dangerous 
weapons.   

 
Exception:  If any of the above referenced convictions were at least ten (10) years 
prior to the date of the application, and there are no subsequent felony convictions 
or convictions for the offenses listed in 7 (c)(2), the City Clerk may issue a license 
to the applicant(s).  

 
(d) The applicant(s) knowingly made any false or fraudulent statement of fact in the 

license application or in any document required by the City in conjunction 
therewith. 

 
(e) The applicant(s) ever had a massage business facility or other similar license 

denied, revoked, or suspended by the City or a similar business license or permit 
denied by any other governmental entity within ten (10) years prior to the date of 
the application and the denial, revocation or suspension was based on criminal 
activity, fraud or a violation of the healthy, safety and welfare provisions of a 
municipal ordinance or State law. 

 
(f) The applicant(s), if individual(s), or any of the officers, directors, and resident 

agents (if the applicant is a corporation); or any of the partners, including limited 
partners (if the applicant is a partnership); or any massage therapists or 
employees that are under the age of eighteen (18) years. 

 
 



 8 

8. Approval or Denial of Application: 
 

The City Clerk shall act to approve or deny an application for a license within a reasonable 
period of time and in no event this action occur later than sixty (60) days from the date that 
said application was accepted by the City Clerk’s office. 

 
Every license issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be valid for one year and must be 
renewed as required by this Chapter.  

 
Applicant(s) denied a license, pursuant to these provisions, may appeal the denial to the 
City Council through a written document that states the reasons why the license should be 
granted. Such appeal proceedings shall be held in an open meeting before the City 
Council. The City Council may grant or deny a license after an appeal hearing. 

 
9. Posting of License: 
 

Every Massage Facility Licensed under this Chapter shall be displayed in a prominent 
place at the Massage Facility.     

 
10. Records of Employees: 
 

(a) The licensee shall maintain a register of all persons employed or engaged as massage 
therapists for the licensee and/or on the licensed premises. Such registry shall be 
maintained at the Massage Facility, and available upon request to representatives of 
the City of Troy during regular business hours.    

 
(b) Each licensee is responsible for providing the information that is required under 

Section 5 of this ordinance for any new employees or massage therapists that will be 
employed or engaged by the Massage Facility licensee that were not included on the 
license application.  The investigative fee for each such proposed new employee or 
massage therapist must also be paid, and the City will then conduct the required 
investigation.  City Clerk approval is required before any new employee or massage 
therapist can work or do massage at the massage facility.   

 
11. Suspension or Revocation of License; Notice and Hearing: 
 

(a) When any of the provisions of this Chapter are violated by the licensee, an 
employee, manager, massage therapist, employee or independent contractor of 
the massage facility; and/or when any licensee, employee, manager, massage 
therapist, employee or independent contractor of the licensee is engaged in any 
conduct which violates any State law or City ordinance; or upon notification from 
the Oakland County Health Department that the Massage Facility is being 
managed, conducted, or maintained without regard to proper sanitation and 
hygiene; or for any good cause; the City Council of the City of Troy may suspend 
or revoke the Massage Facility License after notice and a due process hearing.   

 
(b) For conditions posing a threat to the public health, safety and welfare of the 

community, patrons, employees or others, a health officer, code enforcement 
officer, fire marshal or a police officer, with the approval of the City Manager or his 
designee, is hereby granted the authority to immediately suspend any license 
granted hereunder, without notice or a hearing; provided, however, that written 



 9 

notice of the suspension shall be given to the licensee within seventy-two (72) 
hours of the suspension, and shall contain the effective date and time of such 
suspension.  Notice shall be hand delivered to the manager or person in charge of 
the facility and also sent by first class mail to the licensee’s last know address. A 
copy of the notice shall also be posted on the front door of the facility.   

 
(c) If the Massage Facility License is suspended pursuant to Section 11 (b), or if the 

City Manager or his/ her designee determines that the Massage Facility License 
should be suspended or revoked under the provisions of Section 11 (a), the City 
Clerk shall set a date and time for a due process hearing before City Council. The 
hearing shall be set for the next available regular Council meeting, taking into 
account the notice requirements of City Charter, City ordinance and State law.  
The City Clerk shall send a notice of the hearing to the licensee at the Massage 
Facility, as well as sent by first class mail to the licensee’s last known address, if 
different than the Massage Facility.  Additionally, a copy of the notice of the hearing 
shall also be posted on the front door of the Massage Facility.  

 
(d) The notice of hearing shall indicate that the City of Troy has initiated suspension 

and/or revocation proceedings, and shall state the reason for the suspension or 
requested revocation.  The notice shall state the location of the hearing and the 
date and time that the licensee may appear before City Council to give testimony 
and show cause why the Massage Facility License should not be suspended or 
revoked. 

 
(e) At the due process hearing, City staff and/or other concerned individuals will have 

the opportunity to present evidence and testimony supporting the suspension ore 
requested revocation.  The licensee shall be allowed to present evidence and 
testimony at the hearing as to why the license should not be suspended or 
revoked.  After the hearing, the City Council may revoke the Massage Facility 
License, suspend the Massage Facility License, or deny the suspension or 
revocation of the license.  If City Council suspends the Massage Facility License, 
then Council shall clearly specify the length of the suspension, as well as any 
conditions that must be satisfied or corrective action that must be taken prior to 
restoration of the Massage Facility License.     

 
(f) If the licensee fails to satisfy Council’s articulated conditions for restoration of a 

suspended Massage Facility License within the time allocated to the licensee, then 
Council can revoke the Massage Facility License.  The licensee may appeal the 
City Council decision with the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Any such appeal 
must be filed within 21 days of the final decision and shall be governed by the 
Michigan Court Rules applicable to an appeal from an administrative agency under  
MCLA 660.631. 

 
12. Renewal of Massage Facility License: 
 

An application to renew a license to operate a Massage Facility shall be filed at least 
fifteen (15) days prior to the date of license expiration. Such renewal shall be annual and 
shall be accompanied by the application fee. 

 
(a) The applicant(s) shall present the following information to the City Clerk’s office for 

the renewal application:   



 10 

 
(1) A sworn affidavit by the applicant(s) stating that the information contained 

in the original application has not changed, or if it has changed, specifically 
identifying the changes that have occurred. 

 
(2) The names, addresses, birth dates and driver’s license numbers of each 

massage therapist and each employee or independent contractor who is or 
will be employed or located in the Massage Facility.  

 
(3) The names, addresses, birth dates and driver’s license numbers of each 

individual who will be a manager, acting manager or in charge of each 
Massage Facility.   

 
(b) The application shall be referred to the Chief of Police who shall investigate the 

criminal history of the applicant(s) and any  massage therapists, employees, 
managers and independent contractors listed as set out above. 

 
13. Massage Facility Requirements: 
 

No Massage Facility License shall be issued unless the appropriate inspectors from the 
Police Department, Fire Department or any other appropriate department of the City of 
Troy confirm that the Massage Facility complies with each of the following minimum 
requirements: 

 
(a) All provisions of the City codes and State law have been complied with, including 

but not limited to building, mechanical, plumbing, electrical and fire codes. 
 

(b) Adequate and appropriate bathing, dressing, locker, and toilet facilities are 
provided for patrons. If clothing and personal property is not kept with the patron, 
there shall be a separate locker for each patron to be served, which shall be 
capable of being locked. 

 
 (c) Rooms used for steam baths and showers shall be waterproof, and shall be 

constructed of approved waterproof materials and shall be installed in accordance 
with the City of Troy codes, including but not limited to the following: 

 
(1) Floors, walls and ceilings of steam rooms and shower compartments shall 

be waterproofed with a smooth, readily cleanable, nonabsorbent material. 
 

(2) Floors of wet and dry heat rooms shall be adequately pitched to one or 
more floor drains properly connected to the sanitary sewer. 

 
(3) A source of hot water must be available within the immediate vicinity of dry 

and wet heat rooms to facilitate cleaning. 
 

(d) The premises shall have adequate equipment for disinfecting and sterilizing 
non-disposable instruments and materials used in administering massages. Such 
non-disposable instruments and materials shall be disinfected after use on each 
patron. 

 
(e) Closed cabinets shall be provided and used for the storage of clean linen, towels 



 11 

and other materials used in connection with administering massages. All soiled 
linens, towels and other materials shall be kept separate from the clean storage 
areas.  No common use of towels or linens is permitted. 

 
(f) A minimum of one separate washbasin shall be provided in each Massage Facility 

for the use of employees of any such Facility. The basin shall provide soap or 
detergent and hot and cold water at all times, and shall be located within or as 
close as practicable to the area devoted to the performing of massage services. In 
addition, there shall be provided at each washbasin sanitary single-use towels 
placed in permanently installed dispensers. 

 
14. Operating Requirements: 
 

(a) Every portion of the Massage Facility, including appliances and apparatus, shall 
be kept clean and operated in a sanitary condition. 

 
(b) The price rates for all services at the Massage Facility shall be prominently posted 

in the reception area in a location available to all prospective customers. 
 

(c) The Massage Facility shall not be made available as a sleeping quarters 
accommodation for any person. No beds, water mattresses, cots, or equipment 
designed for sleeping shall be permitted on the premises. 

 
(d) All massage therapists and independent contractors massaging and/or attending 

patrons shall be clean and wear clean uniforms covering the torso. Such uniforms 
shall be non-transparent and of washable or disposable material and shall be kept 
in a clean condition. Such clothing shall cover the person’s pubic area, perineum, 
buttocks, natal cleft and the entire chest up to a height of four (4) inches below the 
collarbone. All employees and independent contractors giving massages shall 
wear slacks and a blouse or shirt, or a one-piece pants suit or coverall. Skirts or 
dresses shall not be permitted.  

 
(e) All massage facilities shall be supplied with and provide clean laundered sheets 

and towels in sufficient quantity.  Sheets and towels shall be laundered after each 
use thereof and stored in a sanitary manner. 

 
(f) Wet and dry heat rooms, steam or vapor rooms, or steam and vapor cabinets, 

shower compartments and toilet rooms shall be thoroughly cleaned each day the 
business is in operation. 

 
(g) Massage Facility Licensees shall not place, publish, distribute or cause to be 

placed, published, or distributed any advertisement, picture, or statement which is 
known to be false, deceptive, or misleading or through the exercise of reasonable 
care should be known to be false, deceptive or misleading, in order to induce any 
person to purchase or utilize any professional massage services. 

 
15. Persons under Age Eighteen Prohibited on Premises: 
 

No person shall permit any person under the age of eighteen (18) years to come or remain 
on the premises of any Massage Facility as a massage therapist, employee, or 
independent contractor.  A patron under the age of eighteen (18) years shall be 



 12 

accompanied by a parent or legal guardian, or have in his or her possession a signed 
parental or legal guardian consent form, consenting to his or her presence at the Massage 
Facility premises for the purpose of receiving a massage. 

 
16. Hours: 
 

Massage Facilities shall not be operated or kept open for any purposes between the hours 
of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 

 
17. Inspection Required: 
 

The Chief of Police, Fire Chief, police officers, fire department personnel, code 
enforcement officers, or other authorized inspectors from the City of Troy shall have the 
right from time to time to inspect each Massage Facility for the purposes of determining 
that the Massage Facility is in full compliance with the provisions of this Chapter.  It shall 
be unlawful for any Massage Facility Licensee to refuse or fail to allow such inspection or 
to hinder such officer or inspector in any manner. 

 
18. Unlawful Acts: 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person in a Massage Facility to place his or her hand or 
hands upon, to touch with any part of his or her body, to fondle in any manner, or to 
massage a sexual or genital part of any other person. Sexual or genital parts shall 
include the genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus, or perineum of any person, or the 
vulva or breasts of a female. 

 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person in a Massage Facility to expose his or her sexual 

or genital parts, or any portion thereof, to any other person. It shall also be unlawful 
for any person in a Massage Facility to expose the sexual or genital parts, or any 
portions thereof, of any other person. 

 
(c) It shall be unlawful for any person, while in the presence of any other person in a 

Massage Facility, to fail to conceal the sexual or genital parts of his or her body 
with a fully opaque covering. 

 
(d) It shall be unlawful for any person owning, operating or managing a Massage 

Facility, or any agent, employee, or any other person under his or her control or 
supervision to perform such acts or allow the performance of such acts that are 
prohibited in subsections 19 (a), (b) or (c). 

 
19. Sale, Transfer or Change of Location: 
 

The Massage Facility License shall not be sold or transferred to another. Any sale, 
transfer, or relocation of a Massage Facility requires compliance with the application 
process under the provisions of this Chapter, and the Massage Facility License is null and 
void upon the transfer, sale, or relocation.  All licensees having knowledge of the sale, 
transfer or relocation of a Massage Facility are required to immediately report such sale, 
transfer or relocation to the City Clerk’s office. Failure to do so within thirty (30) days of the 
sale, transfer or relocation shall result in an immediate suspension of all business. 

 
 



 13 

20. Name and Place: 
 
No person granted a license pursuant to this Chapter shall operate a Massage Facility 
under a name that is not specified in their Massage Facility License, nor shall they conduct 
business under any designation or location that is not specified in their Massage Facility 
License. 

 
21. Violation and Penalty: 
 

Any individual who violates Section 4 of this Chapter shall be responsible for a municipal 
civil infraction, as set out in Chapter 100 of the Code of Ordinances. 
 
Any person, whether acting as an individual, owner, manager, employee of the owner, or 
whether acting as an agent or independent contractor for the owner, employee or 
operator, or acting as a participant or worker in any way directly or indirectly who operates 
a Massage Facility without first obtaining a license from the City of Troy and paying the 
established fee, or who violates any provisions of this Chapter except the provisions in 
Section 4, is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by 
imprisonment for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days and/or a fine not to exceed five 
hundred dollars ($500.00), plus costs, at the discretion of the Court. Each day that a 
violation is permitted to exist constitutes a separate offense. 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule of Chapter 60. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule is hereby amended to provide a license fee and 
renewal fee for Massage Facility Licenses. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule. Is amended by the addition of the following new 
fees:    
 
 
ITEM/SERVICE:     FEE: 
 
Massage Facility License 
 
Application Fee     $500.00 
 
Investigation Fee $500.00 for each listed applicant 

and an additional $50.00 for each 
massage therapist, employee, 
and/or independent  contractor.  
 

Annual License Renewal Fee    $500.00 
 
 
Massage Therapist Registration: 
 
Registration Fee      $  10.00 
 
Annual Renewal Fee      
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 



proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2008. 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

1 

CHAPTER 98 – CRIMINAL CODE 
 

 
MASSAGE PARLORS 
  
98.15.01 Definition.  
 

For purposes of this Chapter, a “massage parlor” is defined as any 
building or part thereof, place or establishment where non surgical and 
non medical manipulative exercises are practiced upon the human body, 
with or without the use of mechanical or bathing devices, where the 
revenue from the massage activities comprises more than five per centum 
(5.0%) of the gross receipts of the business location, other than; a 
regularly licensed hospital or dispensary, a place where massage of the 
face is for cosmetic or beautifying purposes, a place providing massage in 
the course of prescribed medical treatment by a physician, surgeon 
similarly qualified and registered status. 

 
98.15.02 License Required. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation 

to maintain or operate a Massage Parlor without first having obtained a 
Massage Parlor license. 

 
a. The annual licensing fee for a Massage Parlor shall be 

$5,000.00. 
 

b. The annual licensing fee for persons engaged in the practice of 
massage as defined in this Chapter shall be $25.00. 

 
98.15.03 Application Requirements. The applicant for a license under the 

provisions of this Chapter shall file with the Chief of Police a written 
application therefore, under oath, on a form prescribed and supplied by 
the City Clerk, and shall submit satisfactory proof of good moral character, 
and, if qualified, shall receive a certificate of approval from the Chief of 
Police, a copy of which certificate shall be delivered to the City Clerk with 
the application for license and the license fee therefore. A record of 
conviction for an offense involving gambling, narcotics, prostitution, 
pandering, or any other offense involving moral turpitude, or a violation of 
any provision of this Chapter, within the preceding two (2) years shall 
constitute grounds for denial of the application. The owners or conductors 
of any massage parlor shall be of good moral character, or, if a 
corporation, it officers of good moral character. The premises on which 
such establishment is located shall be sanitary and suitable for the 
conduct of such business. 

 
98.15.04 Display Of License and Regulations. License certificates issued under this 

Chapter shall be displayed by the licensee at or near the place where 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

2 

such licensee is engaging in the practice or occupation for which he has 
obtained a license. The City Clerk shall cause copies of the regulations 
provided for by this Chapter to be printed and be furnished the licensees 
under this Chapter. Every licensee shall cause such regulations to be 
placed in a prominent place in each establishment or shop regulated by 
this Chapter. 

 
98.15.05 Inspection. Every massage parlor shall, at reasonable business hours, be 

held open for inspection by duly authorized representatives of the Police 
Department, the Building Department, and the Oakland County Health 
Department. 

 
98.15.06 Regulations. Licensees under this Chapter shall be subject to the       

following regulations: 
  

a. Service in massage parlors licensed under this Chapter shall be 
limited to exercise, baths and massage. Medical treatment of 
any kind shall not be given to any patron without a prescription 
from a registered physician. The use of heat lamps and sun-ray 
lamps only will be permitted. 

 
b. No person who has any visible symptoms of a communicable 

disease, such as a rash, discharge, or fever, or who is 
complaining of a sore throat may be attended by a licensee 
under this Chapter or any person engaged in the practice or 
massage. 

 
c. Serving or attending in a massage parlor of patrons of the 

opposite sex is prohibited; provided, that this provision shall not 
apply in cases in which such serving or attending is under the 
immediate, direct supervision of a licensed physician or 
osteopath. 

d. Each applicant for a license under this Chapter shall present a 
certificate from a licensed physician, certifying that he is free 
from communicable disease. 

  
e. Advertising that there is a nurse in attendance is prohibited 

unless there is a registered graduate nurse constantly in 
attendance during the business hours of the massage parlor. 

 
f. Advertising that there is a doctor in attendance is prohibited 

unless there is a licensed physician or osteopath constantly in 
attendance during the business hours of the massage parlor. 

  
g. Licensees shall exercise every precaution for the safety of 

patrons. They shall watch for early signs of fatigue or weakness 



Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

3 

and immediately discontinue whatever form of service is being 
given upon the appearance of such signs. 

 
h. No massage parlor shall be conducted in direct connection with 

living quarters. 
 

i. The premises used for a massage parlor shall be well-lighted 
and ventilated. They shall be kept clean, and the furniture and 
equipment shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary condition. 
There shall be an adequate supply of running hot and cold 
water during business hours. Bathing devices shall be 
thoroughly cleaned before the use of each patron. 

 
j. All robes, towels, blankets, and linens furnished for the use of 

one patron shall be thoroughly laundered before offered to 
another. 

 
k. Uniforms or garments worn by employees while attending 

patrons shall be of washable material and shall be kept in clean 
condition. The sleeves shall not reach below the elbow. 

 
l. The skin of the hands of those attending patrons shall be clean 

and in healthy condition, and the nails shall be kept short. The 
hands shall be washed thoroughly before giving the patron any 
attention. 

 
m. Licensees shall be restricted in the exercise of their license to 

the places set forth in their application. 
  

n. Every person employed in the practices defined in this Chapter 
shall be eighteen (18) years of age or older, and shall be of 
good moral character, and approved by the Police Department. 
Such persons shall present a certificate from a licensed 
physician certifying that he is free from communicable disease. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 25, 2008, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Pastor Steve Husava of Northfield Hills Baptist Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 

b) Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
 
Resolution #2008-08-259 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by  Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem Martin 
Howrylak at the Regular City Council and Closed Session meetings of August 25, 2008 due to 
being out of the County. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin  
No:  None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (July), Carol 

Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director presented a check in the amount of $450.88 to 
Ann Comiskey, Executive Director; Renee Michalek, President and Tim Burns, Vice 
President of the Troy Community Coalition. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – EcoMotors, 1055 West 

Square Lake  
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving comment from the Petitioner and Audre 
Zembrzuski. 
  
Resolution #2008-08-260 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for EcoMotors International, for property known as 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, MI 
48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-
06-238; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, 

1055 West Square Lake 

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving no comment from the Public. 
 
Resolution #2008-08-261 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on August 
25, 2008, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1055 
West Square Lake, Troy MI, 48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002;  
 
WHEREAS, An application has been submitted by EcoMotors International, for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, 
MI 48098, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on August 25, 
2008, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 
EcoMotors International, at 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098 may have the effect of 
substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of 
the taxing unit; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, at 1055 
West Square Lake Troy, MI 48098 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 

Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, Inc., at 1055 
West Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098, Parcel #88-20-08-227-004, for personal property for a term 

of twelve (12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and EcoMotors International, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and EcoMotors, 

International, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 

 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development 

(PUD-013) – West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5500 New King)  

Section 8 - O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District  
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving comment from the Petitioner. 
 
Resolution #2008-08-262 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner Tinelle Properties, LLC has requested Concept Development Plan 
approval, pursuant to article 35.50.01, for Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development (PUD-013), 
located on the west side of Crooks and north side of New King, in Section 8, within the O-M 
zoning district, being approximately 6.16 acres in size;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Concept Development 
Plan on July 8, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 35.30.00; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development, parcel 88-20-08-276-002, is described 
in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached boundary survey drawing:  
 
 T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 8 
 

Beginning at a Point N 02°30'26" W, 224.14 ft. along the section line in Crooks 
Rd. and S 87°29'34" W, 90.00 ft. to the West right-of-way line, from the East ¼ 
corner of said Section 8; thence S 87°29'34" W, 248.90 ft.; thence 554.06 ft. 
along the arc of a curve to the right (chord bearing N 47°30’51” W, 498.81 ft., 
radius 352.68 ft.); thence N 02°30’26” W, 137.51 ft.; thence N 87°29'34" E, 
601.65 ft.; thence S 02°30’26” E, 490.18 ft. along the west right-of-way line of 
said Crooks Road (150 ft. wide) to the Point of Beginning. Containing ±6.16 
acres, more or less, and subject to easements of record. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Planning Director and 
City Clerk to take whatever actions are necessary pursuant to the City Ordinance to effect the 
rezoning of the subject parcel to PUD; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-013; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 

Planned Unit Development Agreement and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the Planned Unit Development Agreement for Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development 

on behalf of the City, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the recording of 
the executed Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development Agreement with the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Concept 
Development Plan for Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development and the petitioner is hereby 
permitted to submit Preliminary Development Plans pursuant to Article 35.50.02 of Chapter 39. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Broomfield  
No: Beltramini  
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:50 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:02 PM. 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-5 Library Café Space Recommendation 
 
Resolution #2008-08-263 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On December 3, 2007, a one-year contract for Library Café Services based upon 
new terms and conditions was approved to Zeyn Francis of Troy, MI, (Resolution # 2007-12-
345-F17); and 
 
WHEREAS, Zeyn Francis has defaulted on the contract due to closing the café without notice 
prior to the contract expiration of December 31, 2008;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract for Library Café Services from Zeyn Francis. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City 

Council Appointments: Parks & Recreation Board 

 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Resolution #2008-08-264 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by City Council (7-Regular: 3-Year Terms) (1-Troy School Board: 1-Year Term)  
(1-Troy Daze Committee: 1-Year Term ) (1-Adv. Comm. for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Term) 

 
Gary Hauff – Troy School District Representative    Term Expires 07/31/09 

 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: No nominations forwarded (b) City Council Nominations: No 

nominations forwarded 

 

E-3 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 

League (MML) 
 
Resolution #2008-08-265 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES Council Member Mary Kerwin as 

Principal Official Representative (Official Voting Delegate) and hereby DESIGNATES Council 
Member Robin Beltramini as the Alternate Official Representative (Official Alternate Voting 
Delegate) to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Business Meeting of the Michigan 
Municipal League to be held October 1 through October 4, 2008 on Mackinac Island, Michigan.  
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin   
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-4 Troy Racquet Club Owner – Request to Delete Lease Provisions 
 
Resolution #2008-08-266 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS staff to draft an amendment eliminating 
the provisions that allow for termination without cause. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-6 Liquor License Ordinance Fees – Chapter 60 Amendment 
 
Resolution #2008-08-267 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Section 60.03, as recommended by the City Administration, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-7 Library Fee Schedule Amendment 
 
Resolution #2008-08-268 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the revisions to the Troy Public Library 
Schedule of Library Fees as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and said fee revisions shall apply as of 
October 1, 2008. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-8 Amendment to Troy City Code Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention 
 
Resolution #2008-08-269 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amending Chapter 93 of 
the Troy City Code as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-1a 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) F-7, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of August 11, 2008 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 

 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 7: Amendment – Proprietary Service Contract 

CLEMIS Fire Records Management System         
 
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the five-year proprietary interlocal 
service agreement with Oakland County for participation in the Oakland County Fire Records 
Management System to an estimated total cost of $25,750.00 expiring December 31, 2009. 
 

F-5 Sole Known Supplier – Cell Phone Forensics Purchase 
 
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-5 
 
WHEREAS, Cell phone forensics is a growing field within law enforcement used to substantiate 
a claim of criminal activity;  
 
WHEREAS, Recovery of evidence from cell phones is a very complicated activity that requires 
specialized training, and specific hardware and software used to retrieve the evidence;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

WHEREAS, In order to build a forensics lab capable of handling the majority of cell phones on 
the market at this time, several software and hardware applications are needed; and  
 
WHEREAS, Teel Technologies is the only company that currently sells all the software and 
hardware applications the Troy Police Department has determined necessary to build a cell 
phone forensics lab in one package; 
  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
purchase forensic hardware, software, and services from Teel Technologies of Norwalk, CT, for 
an estimated total cost of $36,050.23, as detailed on the quote dated July 15, 2008, a copy of 

which is ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, plus ongoing license renewals, 
updates and technical support as needed.  
 

F-6 Application for Transfer of Resort Class C License to Dhammamegha, Inc. – 72 

West Maple  
 

a) Transfer of Resort Class C License 
 
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-6a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Dhammamegha, Inc. to transfer ownership of the 2008 Resort Class C licensed business, 
issued under MCL 436.1531 (2), with Official Permit (Food), from Priya Enterprises, Inc., 
located at 72 West Maple, Troy, MI, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

b) Agreement 
  
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-6b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Dhammamegha, Inc. to transfer ownership of the 2008 Resort Class C licensed business, 
issued under MCL 436.1531 (2), with Official Permit (Food), from Priya Enterprises, Inc., 

located at 72 West Maple, Troy, MI, Oakland County, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor 

and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and Golfview 

Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-30-226-008 – Nemer Troy Place Equities 

and Troy Place Equities, LLC 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

Resolution #2008-08-270-F-8 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk 
from property owner Nemer Troy Place Equities, LLC and Troy Place Equities, LLC, having 
Sidwell # 88-20-30-226-008; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and Golfview 

Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-29-151-001 – Somerset Park Apartments, 

LLC 
 
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk 
from property owner Somerset Park Apartments, LLC, having Sidwell # 88-20-29-151-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Acceptance of Sidewalk Easement – Section 29 & 30, Coolidge and Golfview 

Safety Project 07.103.5, Sidwell #88-20-30-228-002 – Somerset Collection Limited 

Partnership 
 
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-10 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk 
from property owner Somerset Collection Limited Partnership, having Sidwell # 88-20-30-228-
002; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-11 Troy Daze Festival Parking Services 
 
Resolution #2008-08-270-F-11 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a three-year contract to furnish 
parking services as outlined in the Troy Daze Festival Parking Agreement with the Troy Police 
Explorers Post 1950 at an annual cost of $4,500.00 for 2008, 2009, and 2010, plus a $500.00 
bonus if revenues of the annual event exceed expenses by $500.00 or more; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the contract is CONTINGENT upon the Explorer’s 
submission of acceptable insurance certificate(s) and all other specified requirements, and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-7 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival 
 
Resolution #2008-08-271 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber 
Fireworks Productions, of Kingsbury, IN for the display of fireworks at the conclusion of the 
2008 Troy Daze Festival on September 14, 2008. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast Corner of 

Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), Section 23 – B-1 to H-S 
(File Number Z-731) – September 8, 2008       

Noted and Filed 
 

G-2 Memorandums:  
a) Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance  

Noted and Filed 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 Resolution Authorizing Staff to Draft Information Regarding Ballot Proposal as 

Requested by Council Member Robin Beltramini  
 
Resolution #2008-08-272 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, It is anticipated that the citizen initiated charter amendment petition to add Section 
9.16.5 to the Troy Charter will be approved by the Attorney General and the Governor of the 
State of Michigan for placement on the November 4, 2008 ballot;  
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

WHEREAS, The City's past practice has been to authorize City Administration to prepare a 
frequently asked questions factual information sheet or other similar educational piece about 
the ballot proposal, which would first be submitted to the City Council for review and approval, 
as well as direction as to the distribution of the educational materials, which could be done 
through the inclusion on the City's web site and/or the printing and distribution and/or mailing of 
the neutral educational material to the voters of the City of Troy;  
  

WHEREAS, Troy City Council is interested in providing neutral educational information to the 
voters about the November 2008 ballot questions; and  
  

WHEREAS, It is in the City's best interest to hire outside experts to prepare such neutral 
educational materials concerning the November 4, 2008 ballot questions;  
  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City 
Attorney to hire outside legal counsel, at a cost not to exceed $10,000.00 (inclusive of all costs 
and consultants deemed necessary by outside legal counsel), to prepare factual neutral 
information about the ballot proposal for the November 2008 ballot, which shall be presented to 
the Troy City Council for its review and approval and direction as to distribution at the earliest 
opportunity; and  
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to 
provide any necessary assistance or factual information for the preparation of such neutral 
educational materials, as requested by the outside legal counsel or any consultant retained by 
outside legal counsel to assist with the neutral educational materials.   
 
Yes: Beltramini, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
Absent: Howrylak  
 

MOTION FAILED 

  

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 

I-1 Council Comments: 
 

Council Members Eisenbacher and Fleming inquired of Staff as to the status of Mr. Ross’s 
request for screening of his view of Raintree Park. 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 4, 2008  
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 4, 2008  
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Amended/Final – June 11, 2008  
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 9, 2008  
e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – July 15, 2008  

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 22, 2008  
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 22, 2008  
h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 11, 2008 
i) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – August 12, 2008 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Customer Solutions Monthly Report – July, 2008  
b) Purchasing Department/Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – July, 2008 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter from Pat Anlishiv Commending Lifeguards  
b) Letter of Thanks to Detective Pokley from Dale and Debbie Bise Regarding the Effort 

and Assistance Received on a Case 
c) Letter of Thanks to Officer Andy Breidenich from Hannah Mae Russ Regarding the Time 

Taken to Educate for Daisy Scout Petal 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #08125 – Michigan’s Structural 

Deficit  
Noted and Filed 

 

J-5  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Amber Creek East 

Apartments v. City of Troy 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Proposed Consolidation 

and Redraft of Municipal Solid Waste and Littering Ordinances  
Noted and Filed 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Attorney as Permitted by 

Council Resolution #2008-07-233 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 25, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 10:28 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 10:34 PM. 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:55 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
 

Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

PROCLAMATION 
INTERNATIONAL DAY OF PEACE 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2008 
 
 
WHEREAS, The opportunity for peace embraces the deepest hopes of all peoples and remains 
humanity’s guiding inspiration; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1981 the United Nations proclaimed the International Day of Peace be 
“devoted to commemorating and strengthening the ideals of peace both within and among all 
nations and peoples;” and 
 
WHEREAS, The United Nations expanded the observance of the International Day of Peace 
in 2001 to include the call for a day of global ceasefire and non-violence, and invited all nations 
and people to honor a cessation of hostilities for the duration of the Day; and 
 
WHEREAS, There is growing support within our City for the observance of the International 
Day of Peace, which affirms a vision of our world at peace, and fosters cooperation between 
individuals, organizations and nations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Global crises impel all citizens to work toward converting humanity’s noblest 
aspirations for world peace into a practical reality for future generations; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby 
proclaim September 21, 2008 as International Day of Peace in the City of Troy and urges all 
citizens to join us in recognizing this day; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council urges all government agencies, 
organizations, schools, places of worship and individuals in our City to commemorate the 
International Day of Peace including joining the Troy Interfaith Group at their celebration on 
September 21 at 3 pm at Central Woodward Christian Church to discover different faith 
traditions’ teaching of/on Peace or any other education and public awareness activities in order 
to help establish a global day of peace in our homes, our communities and between nations.  
 
Signed the 8th day of September 2008. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03a



 
 PROCLAMATION 

 VISITING NURSES ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN 
 110TH ANNIVERSARY 
 SEPTEMBER 8, 2008 

 
WHEREAS, The Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan began in 1898 by a nurse, 
Alice M. Bowen, an Ohio farm girl who attended the Ferrand School of Nursing which was the 
precursor to Wayne State University’s College of Nursing; and 
 
WHEREAS, After graduating Bowen worked as a visiting nurse in Philadelphia.  When she returned 
to Detroit, she was determined to start a visiting nurse service in our community. Today, Bowen’s 
dream has grown into the largest independent home health care and hospice organization to serve 
residents of Wayne, Oakland, Macomb, Livingston and Washtenaw counties; and  
 
WHEREAS, Every year, the Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan’s staff of 
nurses, physical, occupational and speech therapists, home health aids and social workers provide 
care to more than 8,500 people; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan has remained true to its 
century old mission to provide care to all members of the community, regardless of their ability to 
pay.  Annually, it provides more than $1 million in uncompensated care; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan is Medicare-certified and 
accredited by The Joint Commission, demonstrating its commitment to exacting standards in the 
delivery of its quality care; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate the 
Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan on their 110th Anniversary and recognizes 
its impact upon our community as they serve as a steadfast and dedicated organization; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in 
appreciation and celebration of the Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan on this 
important milestone. 
 
Signed the 8th day of September 2008. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03b



PROCLAMATION 
NATIONAL ALCOHOL AND DRUG ADDICTION RECOVERY MONTH 

SEPTEMBER 2008 
 
WHEREAS, As many as 22.6 million people aged 12 or older in the United States are currently facing a 
substance use disorder; and  
 
WHEREAS, Four million of those with a substance use disorder have made the courageous choice to 
seek out the treatment they need and embark on a path of recovery; and  
 
WHEREAS, Treatment and long-term recovery from substance use disorders can offer people a 
renewed outlook on life. These disorders also take a toll on the families of these individuals, as well as 
the communities in which they live; and  
 
WHEREAS, It is critical to offer people and their families the treatment and recovery support they need 
for substance use disorders so they may lead more productive and fulfilling lives, personally and 
professionally; and   
 
WHEREAS, Studies have consistently found that individualized treatment is essential for people to be 
successful in their path of recovery; and  
 
WHEREAS, By educating our community members that substance use disorders are a treatable, yet 
serious health care problem, and by treating them like other chronic diseases, we can improve the quality 
of life of the entire community; and  
 
WHEREAS, To help achieve this goal, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, the White House Office of National Drug 
Control Policy, and the Troy Community Coalition for the Prevention of Drug and Alcohol Abuse invite all 
residents of Troy to participate in National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy hereby proclaims the 
Month of September 2008 as National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to recognize and participate in its 
observance with appropriate programs, activities, and ceremonies supporting this year’s theme, “Join 
the Voices for Recovery: Real People, Real Recovery.” 
 
Signed this 8th day of September 2008. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03c



 
  August 26, 2008 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager//Economic Development Services  

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Street Light 

Installation/Replacement 
  
Background 
• On October 2, 2006, Troy City Council approved a contract to provide two (2) year requirements for 

street light installation and replacement services with an option to renew for one additional year 
(Resolution # 2006-10-381-E-4b). 

• Harlan Electric Company has been providing quality service for the City and has offered to renew their 
contract one-year under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 

• Harlan Electric Company of Rochester Hills, MI was the sole bidder. 
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds for this project are available in the 2008/09 Street Light Maintenance Accounts and the Parks 

Maintenance Account for lighting work done on the ball diamonds. 
• Acct # 448.7802.150 Street Lighting - Contractual Services Contractor – Equipment Maintenance  
• Acct # 401.448.7978.010 Street Lighting - General Equipment 
• Acct # 759.7802.070 Athletic Field Maintenance - Contractual Services  

 
Legal Considerations  
• ITB-COT 06-30 Street Light Installation and Replacement Services was competitively bid and opened 

with one bidder responding, in accordance with City Charter and Code. 
• Harlan Electric Company has agreed to renew the contract under the same prices, terms, and 

conditions 
 
Policy Considerations 
• Moving this work forward would improve public safety and reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I) 

 
Options 
• City management and the Public Works department recommend exercising the option to renew for 

one-year to the sole bidder, Harlan Electric Company of Rochester Hills, MI, to provide street light 
installation and replacement services at the same unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
September 13, 2006, not to exceed budgetary limitations, expiring September 30, 2009.  

 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 09.08.08 – SR3 – Street Light Installation 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a















 

 

 

 
 
August 29, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Sole Bidder Meeting 

Specifications - Fire Hose Testing 
 

Background 
 The National Fire Protection Association and the Insurance Services Office standards require that 

fire hose be tested annually. 
 On August 25, 2008, bid proposals were received to provide two-year requirements with an option 

to renew for one additional year for Fire Hose Testing for the Troy and Independence Township 
fire departments.   

 Fifteen (15) vendors were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) 
website.  One vendor, Fire Catt, LLC, 3250 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, submitted a bid.   
 

Financial Considerations 
 Funds are budgeted annually in the Fire Halls contractual services account for equipment 

maintenance, A/C # 344.7802.150.   

 

Legal Considerations 
 Award is contingent upon contractor submission of proper contract and bid documents, including 

insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations 
 Maintenance of emergency equipment is consistent with Troy City Council’s ongoing objective to 

enhance the health and safety of the community. (Outcome Statement I) 
 

Options 
 City management recommends awarding a two-year contract, with an option to renew for one 

additional year, for the testing of fire hose to the sole bidder, Fire Catt, LLC of Troy, MI, who 
complies with the specifications, for an estimated total cost of $12,540.00 for 2008/2009 and 
$13,680.00 for 2009/2010, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened August 25, 2008.  

  
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 NewFormat/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Fire Hose Testing  09-08.doc  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-25
Opening Date: 8/25/08 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Prepared: 8/29/08 FIRE HOSE TESTING

VENDOR NAME:

YEAR 2008-2009 YEAR 2009-2010
EST QTY (FT) LOCATION Unit Price (Per Ft) Unit Price (Per Ft)

PROPOSAL I: On-Site Fire Hose Testing
57,000 City of Troy 0.22$                0.24$               

Est. Total Cost 12,540.00$       13,680.00$       

Minimum amount of hose: 50,000 FT

PROPOSAL II: On-Site Fire Hose Testing w/Twp staff removing and repacking the hose
19,500 Independence Twp. 0.15$                0.165$             

Est. Total Cost 2,925.00$         3,217.50$         

Minimum amount of hose: 19,000 FT

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation
Phone #

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
   City of Troy -     within 8    Days

   Independence -  within 3    Days

TECHNICIANS TRAINING & CERTIFICATION
Attached Marked As: SERVICE TECH
Not Attached:

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

EXTENSION TO MTN COOPERATIVE:
Y or N YES

TERMS Net 30

EXCEPTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes

PROPOSAL:  Furnish All Equipment, Labor and Materials to Provide Two-Year Requirements of Fire Hose
Testing for the City of Troy Fire Department, Independence Township and Participating MITN Purchasing 
Cooperative Members with an Option to Renew for One Additional Year

ATTEST:
Diane Fisher BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES SOLE BIDDER
Keith Lenderman
Linda Bockstanz _________________________________

Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 08-25 Fire Hose Testing

Fire Catt, LLC

  8 AM to 5 PM
248-224-9729

or    248-643-7200

NONE



campbellld
Text Box
F-05









campbellld
Text Box
F-06







































campbellld
Text Box
F-07





































































campbellld
Text Box
F-08









 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:     Members of the Troy City Council 
 
FROM:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
    Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
    Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Citizen Petition Initiated Ballot Language Ratification to Correct 

Typographical Error as Noted by the State of Michigan Attorney 
General’s Office 

 
Background: 
 
 Proposed citizen petition initiated charter amendment as submitted was forwarded to the 

State of Michigan Attorney General’s Office for review. According to the Attorney General’s 
Office review letter, initiatory petition charter amendment ballot questions must be true to the 
language circulated on the petitions.  The AG’s Office review noted a transposition of two 
words within the submittal. The language has been redrafted with the correction red-lined to 
more accurately represent the petition submittal in the motion as provided below. 
 

F- Ratification of the Proposed Ballot Language to Correct the Typographical 
Error on the Citizen Petition Initiated Charter Amendment Proposal – Section 
9.16.5 as Noted by the State of Michigan Attorney General’s Office 

 
Resolution #2008-09- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES the language for placement on the 
November 4, 2008 Election ballot, the following ballot question to confirm that the 
typographical error, as noted by the State of Michigan Attorney General’s Office, is correct 
to mirror the language as presented on the citizen initiated petition submittal as follows:  
 

AN INITIATORY PETITION TO AMEND THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER BY ADDING SECTION 9.16.5 

 
Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation be 
added to the Troy City Charter as follows:  

 
“Section 9.16.5. The Council shall not increase the millage rate 
imposed pursuant to Section 9.16 of this charter above a current 
rate actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the increased 

  
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



rate shall be first be approved by a majority of the City electors 
voting on the question.”? 
Yes ___ No ___ 
 

Yes: 
No:  

 
 A copy of the Attorney General’s Office Review letter is attached for your convenience.      

 
Financial Considerations:   
 
 There are no Financial Considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
  
 Proposed initiatory charter amendments submitted in compliance with State Law Shall be 

submitted to the voters.  (MCL 117.21(1))    
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy is building for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 

changing and interconnected world.  
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can resolve the typographical error by ratifying the ballot language to more 

accurately represent the language provided in the citizen initiated petition charter amendment 
ballot question (majority vote).   

 
 
 
 
TLB. 2008.09.8 Charter Amendment Ballot Language Ratification.doc 
 



campbellld
Text Box
F-10











  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: September 4, 2008 
SUBJECT: Agreement between City of Troy and Troy School District for 

NPDES Permit 
 

 

  

 

The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality has declared that school 
districts, including the Troy School District, are also subject to the requirements of the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Wastewater Discharge Permit for Storm 
Water Discharges (NPDES Permit).  The City of Troy has voluntarily worked with the Troy 
School District in past years, but with the issuance of a new permit, an agreement 
formalizing this “nesting” relationship under Troy’s permit is now required.   

 
Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Troy retains the primary responsibility for 

compliance with the NPDES Permit.  However, since the exact requirements of the new 
NPDES Permit are subject to our administrative challenge, and therefore unknown, the 
Nesting Agreement is vague, but does require the Troy School District to reimburse its 
share of any out of pocket costs incurred by Troy for compliance with the NPDES Permit.  
The Agreement is before you at this time, prior to the completion of the administrative 
proceeding, since the Troy School District needs to either apply for its own permit at this 
time or demonstrate that it will work cooperatively under the City’s NPDES permit.  There 
may be other entities that desire to nest under the City’s NPDES permit as well, especially 
since there are now additional entities that are required to comply with the NPDES permit 
requirements.       

 
The Troy School Board has approved this attached Agreement.   It is our 

recommendation that the Agreement be approved by the Troy City Council.     
 
  If you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.   
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-11

















 

 
 
August 25, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing, Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats 
  CJ Mahoney’s, 2511 Livernois 
 
 
 
Background: 
 

 We have received an application from Joseph Everson, manager of CJ Mahoney’s located at 2511 
Livernois Road, for outdoor dining for 42 seats in conjunction with the new restaurant. 

 The use of property in question is controlled by the terms of a consent judgment which allows uses in 
accordance with the O-M (Office Mid-rise) Zoning District. 

 Section 25.30.03 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance allows outside seating areas in excess of 20 seats as a 
use permitted subject to Special Use Approval by City Council (in lieu of the Planning Commission) in the 
O-M Zoning District. 

 The previous tenant at this location, Spectadium, obtained approval from City Council for up to 44 seats in 
1996. 

 In accordance with the provisions of Paragraph A of Section 25.30.03, any change in management 
terminates that approval. 

 The procedure for Special Use Approval requires that a public hearing be held on the matter. 

 A public hearing is scheduled for your meeting of September 22, 2008. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 A public hearing on the matter is required per Sections 3.30.00 and 251.30.03. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. (Goal IV) 
 
Options: 
 

 There are no options at this time. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a







 

 
 
August 18, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing for The ProMetal RCT, LLC 2341 Alger 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The ProMetal RCT, LLC, has requested the establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD), and the issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for their business 
at 2341 Alger, Troy, MI., 48083. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The legal considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Policy considerations will occur at the Public Hearings. 

 
Options: 
 
 The public hearings will be on September 22, 2008 to conform to State law.  

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T\ProMetal\AnnouncePH 09.08.08 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AANNNNOOUUNNCCEEMMEENNTT  
OOFF  PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 22, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from The ProMetal RCT, LLC, for the establishment of an 

Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-200-060  2341 Alger, Troy,  MI.  48083 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

Jack Elwell’s Industrial Park Subdivision 

Lots 5 & 6 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 22, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from The ProMetal RCT, LLC, for the granting of an Industrial 

Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-200-060  2341 Alger, Troy,  MI.  48083 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

Jack Elwell’s Industrial Park Subdivision 

Lots 5 & 6 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI  48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
DORIS PEDERSEN 
2341 ALGER 
TROY MI 48083 

 
 

 
 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 

 
 
August 18, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing for Faurecia, 2350 Meijer 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., has requested the establishment of an Industrial Development 

District (IDD), and the issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for their 
business at 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI., 48084. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The legal considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Policy considerations will occur at the Public Hearings. 

 
Options: 
 
 The public hearings will be on September 22, 2008 to conform to State law.  

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T\Faurecia\AnnouncePH 09.08.08 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AANNNNOOUUNNCCEEMMEENNTT  
OOFF  PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 22, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., for the establishment of 

an Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-32-200-018  2350 Meijer, Troy,  MI.  48084 

T2N, R11E, Section 32 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 22, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., for the granting of an 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the following location: 

 

88-20-32-200-018,  2350 Meijer, Troy,  MI.  48084 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI  48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
FAURECIA AUTOMOTIVE SEATING 
MIKE KAMSICKAS 
2050 AUBURN Rd 
AUBURN HILLS  MI 48326 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 

 
 
August 18, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing for Tepel Bros, 1725 John R 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc., has requested the establishment of an Industrial Development 

District (IDD), and the issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for their 
business at 1725 John R, Troy, MI., 48083. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The legal considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Policy considerations will occur at the Public Hearings. 

 
Options: 
 
 The public hearings will be on September 22, 2008 to conform to State law.  

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T\TepelBros\AnnouncePH 09.08.08 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AANNNNOOUUNNCCEEMMEENNTT  
OOFF  PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  

campbellld
Text Box
G-01d



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 22, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Tepel Brothers Printing Inc., for the establishment of an 

Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-479-040  1725 John R, Troy,  MI.  48083 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 22, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc., for the granting of an 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-479-040  1725 John R, Troy,  MI.  48098 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
WARREN CONSOLIDATED 
SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWSHP MI 48038-1100 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
JAMES TEPEL 
c/o TEPEL BROTHERS PRINTING 
1725 JOHN R 
TROY  MI  48083 

 
ROBERT F FUCHS 
c/o PARADIGM TAX GROUP 
3092 PARK DR 
BRIGHTON  MI 48114 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



campbellld
Text Box
J-01a

























TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 28, 2008 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on May 28, 2008 at 7:00 PM at Troy 
Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  David Wylie and Geon Woo Kim called the meeting to 
order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Disha Bora  

Maxine D’Amico 
Rishi Joshi 
Geon Woo Kim (Co chair) 
Joseph Niemiec  
Anupama Prasad  
Kristin Randall 
Shaina Sekhri (Secretary) 
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale  
David Wylie (Co-chair) 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Jessica Kraft,   
VISITORS: None 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2008-5-9 
 
 Moved by   Thoenes 

  Seconded by  Sekhri 
   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of April 23, 2008 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 10 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  3 – D’Amico, Kraft, Shaw   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitors    
  Welcome to the new members of Youth Council. 
 
5. Teens Taking Action  

No Update 
 
6. Troy Daze 

Volunteer sign up sheets were distributed to Youth Council members and 
requested that they volunteer if possible. 

 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   May 28, 2008 
 

 2

   
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
 Resolution # TY-2008-5-10 

  Moved by  Vitale  
  Seconded by  Thoenes 

  
RESOLVED that Kraft is excused. 

  Yes:   12  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   1 - Kraft 
       
8. Youth Council Comments  

Motion to recommend to City Council to limit the vi deo taping of Youth Council 
meetings to meetings requested in advance by Youth Council. 

 Resolution #TY-2008-5-11 
  Moved by   Vitale 
  Seconded by  Bora 
 Discussion-  

-Meetings not taped may encourage more open discussion amongst members 
regarding current events and topics. 
-Limited taping of meetings would prevent video staff from working every 
meeting and in turn would save the City money.     
-Youth Council would have the authority to request that a meeting be taped if 
items on agenda were of importance to general teen population. 
-New council members present were in support of motion. 
 
Resolved that Youth Council recommends to City Council to limit the video 
taping of Youth Council meetings to meetings requested in advance by Youth 
Council. 

  Yes:   12  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   1 - Kraft 

 
Joseph Niemiec – Welcomed new members and goodbye to leaving members and 
wished them good luck. 

 
9. Public Comments  –  None    
10. Adjournment –   7:23 p.m. 
 
_______________________________________ 
David Wylie, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: August 27, at 7:00 P.M.  



1 

 TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL June 16, 2008 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, June 16, 
2008 at the Troy Museum. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to order at 7:05 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Paul Lin 
   Muriel Rounds 
   Ann Partlan 
   Kent Voigt   
                        Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager   
           
  ABSENT     Sabah Jihad 
   Gary Castile 
 
  
  GUESTS Anna King (WSU student) 
   6488 Reid Road 
   Swartz Creek, MI 48473  
         
 
 

Resolution #HDC-2008-06-001 
Moved by Rounds  
Seconded by Voigt 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Jihad and Castile be approved. 

Yes: 5  Chambers, Lin, Rounds, Partlan, and Voigt 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Resolution #HDC-2008-06-002 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Rounds 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the May 20, 2008 meeting be approved. 

Yes: 5  Chambers, Lin, Rounds, Partlan, and Voigt 
 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



2 

A. Signage and packets for designated resources 
Ann Partlan reminded the group that the Historical Society has funds designated 
for signage for the buildings. The Study Committee has completed most of the 
updated surveys of the existing resources.  

 
B. Resource Files at the museum 

 The commission reviewed information on various products that are designed for 
 or that adapt well those doing historic restorations. They will be placed in a file at 
 the museum for use by home and business owners.  
 
New Business 

A. Annual tour of Museum  
 Loraine invited the commission to attend the annual building tour and to stay for  
 the commission meeting where they will discuss the preliminary site plan for the 
 museum expansion. 

 
The Troy Historic District Commission Meeting was adjourned at 8:10 p.m. The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, July 15, 2008  at 7:00 p.m. at The Troy Museum. 
 
 

 
                  

Ken Voigt 
Acting Chairperson 

 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 2, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, July 2, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – JUNE 4, 2008 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 4, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. BENJAMIN PALMER, 3024 
NEWPORT CT., for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high wood privacy fence at the 
property line along W. Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a 6’ high wood privacy fence.  This property is a double front thru-lot.  It has front yard 
setback requirements along both Newport and W. Big Beaver.  Chapter 83 limits the 
maximum height of fences in front setbacks to 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 
6’ high wood privacy fence along the property line along W. Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Benjamin Palmer was present and stated that he and his wife have four (4) children 
and would like this fence to keep them in the yard and away from Big Beaver.  This 
privacy fence will also help to alleviate the lights and noise from traffic along Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what type of fence Mr. Palmer is proposing. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that it is the typical 6’ wood privacy fence.  Mr. Palmer also said that 
they are planning to put a more decorative type of fence along Newport Ct., which will 
include a design at the top of the fence.  The fence along Newport Ct. will only be 4’ 
high. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the location of the fence along Big Beaver. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 2, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that his plan was to put the fence at the top of the berm along Big 
Beaver. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked where the location of the fence would fall in relation to the existing 
trees in the area. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that the fence would be behind the first row of trees.  Mr. Palmer also 
stated that they had purchased this home approximately one year ago and it needs a lot 
of work.  There are two rows of existing trees and the fence would be placed in between 
these trees. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked why Mr. Palmer wanted a 6’ high fence at the top of the berm rather 
than a 4’ high fence. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that there is a pathway along this area and they would prefer to have 
the higher fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he understands what Mr. Palmer is saying and asked what is 
located on the northeast corner of the property. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that this is a utility easement and the fence will go around it. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that Mr. Palmer will be responsible to maintain this area as well as 
the area behind the fence along Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the petitioner planned to replace the existing split rail fence along 
the property. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that this fence is on City property and the City maintains that part of 
the property.  Mr. Palmer further stated that his property line is approximately 6’ to 8’ off 
the sidewalk, and currently there is a lot of ground cover in the area. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked which side of the fence would be facing out. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that along Big Beaver the post side would be facing his home and the 
blank side of the fencing would be facing Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that wood fences can become unsightly over time and when the trees 
lose their leaves the fence would be very visible.  Mr. Kessler also asked who had 
placed the stakes out on the berm. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that he had done that in order to outline where the fence would be. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how much vegetation would be outside the fence. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 2, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Palmer said that there are trees half way up, and due to the nature of the berm 
there is no vegetation at the top of the berm.  There is quite a bit of vegetation on the 
side of the berm that slopes into the yard.  Mr. Palmer also said that if this Board 
wanted him to add additional vegetation he would be willing to do that. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if a 30” high fence could be placed around the entire yard without a 
variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac confirmed that was correct. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked who would be installing the fence. 
 
Mr. Palmer indicated that he planned on doing the installation himself. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he has found through personal experience that it is very difficult 
to put 6’ high panels at the top of a berm and stated that in his opinion a fence that was 
4’ in height would serve the same purpose. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he can understand Mr. Palmer’s concerns as there is a lot of 
vegetation and the area is quite secluded due to the growth around the property.  Mr. 
Kessler further stated that he would like to see a 4’ fence and more landscaping added 
such as evergreens.   
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that a 4’ high fence will definitely increase the height of the berm 
and Mr. Richnak said that he though the berm was probably 6’ in height. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked the petitioner if he would be willing to make a compromise. 
 
Mr. Palmer stated that a lot of the vegetation is over growth and not very attractive.  He 
plans to clean up the area and remove a lot of the over growth.  Mr. Palmer said that 
they are trying to improve the look of the property.  Mr. Palmer also stated that he did 
not believe the 4’ height would give them the privacy they want and would not help with 
the sound or the lights from cars using Big Beaver.  Mr. Palmer said that they would 
prefer the 6’ height, but would put up the 4’ fence if that is all the Board would approve. 
 
Mr. Palmer also said that he has spoken to the neighbors to the west and the three 
neighbors to the right of his property and they have all indicated that they approve this 
request. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 2, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if they had considered using any other material for this fence. 
 
Mr. Palmer indicated that they had, but it is cost prohibitive. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Benjamin Palmer, 3024 Newport CT. relief of Chapter 83 to 
install a 6’ high wood privacy fence at the property line along W. Big Beaver. 
 

• Additional landscaping to be provided along Big Beaver. 
• Fence posts to face inside petitioner’s property. 
• Area around utility boxes and area between fence and Big Beaver to be 

maintained by petitioner. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:54 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL July 15, 2008 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, July 
15, 2008 at the Troy Museum  because  there was no business. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, August 19, 2008 at 7:00 p.m. at the Troy 
Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Ken Voigt 
ActingChairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



















TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  JULY 22, 2008 

 

CALL TO ORDER              
 
A meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, July 
22, 2008 at the Troy Community Center at 7:05 pm.  

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

Members Present:  Mike Gonda 
    Bob Berk 

Sandy Macknis 
    Jeff Stewart 
    Dan O’Brien 

Allison Miller 
    Jim Hattan 
    Jeff Super 
    Sarah Wunderlich, student 
             

City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 
    Bob Kowalski 
    Jeff Biegler 
    Tonya Perry 

 
Others:    Karen Hattan 
    Doris Schuchter 
    Mimi Ashawalh 
    Diana McKay 
    Jeff Winiarski 
    Lisa Neal 
    Margaret Julian 

   
Absent:   Bob Preston 
 
Excuse Absent Members 

 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-07-19 
Moved by: Sandy Macknis 
Seconded by: Jeff Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee excuses Bob Preston from 
the July 22, 2008 meeting. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  JULY 22, 2008 

 

 
Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
None 
 
Approval of Minutes from June 24, 2008 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-07-20 
Motion by: Jeff Super 
Seconded by: Jim Hattan  
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of June 24, 2008 are approved as submitted  
MOTION CARRIED  
 
New Business 
 
a.  Contract Updates:-  Things are moving along;  slowed down due to new 
financial system.  But all new purchase orders will be entered July 7 and later.   
 
b. 2008 Event Updates: 
  
PARADE: Troy High football team will carry the flags.  Clowns and  
Ronald McDonald are confirmed.  Sandy will help get the cheerleaders.   
 
Wattles and south bound Northfield Parkway will stay open until parade starts  
moving.  
 
So the guests at a Shir Tikvah occurring at 10 a.m. can arrive.  People at Shir  
Tikvah are happy with our time change.   
 
SPECIAL NEEDS EVENTS: Information went out to families of special needs  
children.  We should have 500 children plus chaperones.  
 
Mimi Ashawalh will help Alison and Karen with Kids Corner.  
 
Jim Hattan: Fences were delivered to Jeff Super’s house to be painted.  
Almost completed.  
 
Volunteers: 60 students already signed up.  Sandy will get the rest at high  
school orientations (August 18, 19, 20, 21).  She will give shirt quantities needed  
to Jeff Biegler.  Color is kiwi for student volunteers.   
 
TALENT SHOW: Lots of applications coming in.  Information has been in all local  
papers. 
 
CUTEST TODDLER BOARD: needed at Library first then moves to Community  
Center then to the festival site.   



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  JULY 22, 2008 

 

 
PARKING PASSES: On sale at Community Center August 1.  
 
 
Senior Sensation -  
 
RESOLUTION # TD-2008-07-21 
Motion by: Sandy Macknis 
Seconded by: Mike Gonda  
 
RESOLVED, that we charge $3.00 for the Senior Sensation lunch (chicken 
parmesan, mostoccoli, salad and bread sticks).  
MOTION CARRIED 
 
T-SHIRTS (Bob Berk): No need for 20 t-shirts for Senior Sensation.  Shuttle 
volunteers:  96 t-shirts ordered last year.  Polo shirt list- If have changes in sizes, 
see Bob.  
 
BOOTHS: Sold out for outdoor booths. Indoor Booths: 10 left. Food Booths: 3 
open.  Rib City, Wolverine Concessions, B&S Concessions are supposed to be 
sending in applications.  Lynn Clark is helping Bob with booths.  They are trying 
to rearrange exit procedure for Sunday evening.  

 
ETHNICITY: Approximately 8 booths sold to date.  

 
OPERATIONS:  Signs- Jeff Super will laminate signs like last year.  Mike and 
Cindy will go over list and send to Jeff Super.  
  
OPERATIONS SUPPLY NEEDS: 
  2 cases orange spray paint 
  200 flags 
  12 rolls caution tape 
  Lots of zip ties (18” black thin) 
  Double the drape on entertainment stage 
  $500 petty cash check 
  Donuts check 
   
Try Walmart or Sam’s Club for water donations.  
Need 70 cases pop (30 cases) and water (40 cases).  
Dan re: Coke contact. 
New pavilion on SW side of park will help with layout of outdoor stage and Kids 
Corner.  

 
Set-Up- Friday, September 5 at 8 am and Sunday, September 7 at 8 am. 

 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  JULY 22, 2008 

 

Booth meeting- Wednesday, September 3 at 7 pm.  We will have lawn signs and 
posters for this meeting. 
 
Adjourn 
 
RESOLUTION # TD-2008-07-22 
Moved by: Alison Miller 
Seconded by: Jeff Super 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting is adjourned. 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:05 pm. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 29, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the special meeting of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals to order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, July 29, 2008 in Council Chambers of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael Bartnik 
    Kenneth Courtney 
    Glenn Clark 
    Marcia Gies 
    Matthew Kovacs 
    David Lambert 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:   Wayne Wright 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JULY 17, 2008 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 17, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:   6 – Courtney, Clark, Gies, Kovacs, Lambert, Bartnik 
Absent:  1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 - VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DENNIS SIAVRAKAS OF BRYDEN HOMES, 
660 E. LONG LAKE,  for relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land that 
will result in one lot that is 83.51’ wide and the other lot 83.37’ wide, where Section 
30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’ in the R-1C 
Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Section 30.10.04 of the 
Zoning Ordinance to split an existing vacant parcel of land to create two home sites.  
This parcel is located in the R-1C Zoning District and Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning 
Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’.  The site plan submitted indicates that 
this split will result in one lot that is 83.51’ wide and the other lot 83.37’ wide at the front 
setback line. 
 
This item was originally scheduled for the meeting of July 17, 2008; however, due to an 
error in publishing it was postponed to allow for the correct publication to go out.  
Notices of the new date were sent out to property owners within 300’ of this parcel and 
the proper notice has now been published in the newspaper. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 29, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 –con’t. 
 
Mr. Lambert stated that Parcel B is a much larger piece of property and asked if this 
was a buildable lot for a single-family residence.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that as it stands right now you can only have one home on it.  The 
street Nada dead ends into it and there is the possibility that this street will be extended 
farther in and the petitioner can potentially develop other lots at that time.  It would only 
be possible with the extension of the existing street. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many splits of this parcel would be allowed without going 
through the Subdivision Control Act.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Land Division Act, previously referred to as the Subdivision 
Control Act, would allow this property to be split into four parcels without doing a plat.  
This action would be included and it would allow them to divide two additional lots 
before they would have to go through subdivision platting or site plan condominium to 
get additional divisions of the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Stimac had any idea how many lots would be allowed on this 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he was not sure, but if they used lot averaging, he thought that it 
would be possible to create six sites on this parcel.  This would be dependent on them 
extending the street to the eastern edge. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if he was correct in assuming that if the variance was granted now, 
Parcel B could still be used as a condominium site. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that option would be available to the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Dennis Siavrakas and Mr. Brian Vargason of Bryden Homes were present.  Mr. 
Siavrakas stated that Houghten Drain is on the east side of the property and runs 
through the rear portion of the property.  If they were to go through and request a 
Subdivision Plat or Site Condominium this drain would probably take up two lots.  A total 
of five lots would be able to be built on this parcel. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if that was their plan. 
 
Mr. Siavrakas said that if things go well that is what they would like to do in the future. 
Mr. Siavrakas also said that they would like to build two (2) new homes and the parcels 
to the west have just about the same exact frontage.  This request is minor and the 
proposed development makes sense as it almost identical to the lots to the west of this 
site.  They cannot look to the east for any additional property as it is owned by Oakland 
County and they did approach the neighbors to the west; however, they are not 
interested in selling any of their property.  This variance is only about 2% and the lot to  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 29, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
the east is a little wider at the back of the property.  These homes would increase 
property values and would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property.  All other 
requirements including setbacks would be met. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if it would be possible for the petitioner to pick up extra property 
from the parcel to the east. 
 
Mr. Siavrakas stated that Oakland County has the rights to the drain and the easement 
there.  Riverbend Condominiums developed this property and they had to distinguish a 
line that was given to Oakland County as an easement line.  If they developed the 
property to the south the same thing would apply, they would have to distinguish an 
easement line, which would be recorded against the property and it would be given to 
the Oakland County Drain Commission.  Mr. Siavrakas said that there are wetlands on 
the property that are approximately 10’ to15’ from the rear of the property.  The drain 
runs through the side and rear of the property. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that they could own the property they would just not be able to build 
on it. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they would be opposed to stipulations on the property that would 
state that the property could only be developed into single-family residential property. 
 
Mr. Siavrakas said that they would definitely agree, and feels that this is how it should 
be. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that is one of the concerns raised by surrounding property owners 
and he believes this is a valid concern.  Mr. Kovacs also asked if they were planning to 
extend Nada. 
 
Mr. Siavrakas said that they would like to and stated that this area will be kept to single-
family residential.  Nada is also zoned as R-1C and development as single-family 
residential would make the most sense.  They have no intentions to develop the 
property any other way. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing closed. 
 
There are two (2) written objections on file.  There is one written approval on file. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that one of the letters approving this request was from the property 
owner immediately to the west, 646 E. Long Lake, and the property, 632 E. Long Lake 
that is located two parcels to the west objected to this request.  Mr. Bartnik stated that 
Mr. Siavrakas indicated that these lots were the same size as the proposed lots. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 29, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that 632 and 646 E. Long Lake, as well as the properties on Nada were 
done as a Subdivision Plat and were done with the lot averaging option.  This allows a 
variation in lot width as long as the minimum lot area is maintained.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner would need a variance to build a home on Parcel B if 
this variance was granted. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner is asking that the Board approve both lot widths, and 
make them buildable lots.  Technically, both lots have the same width on the frontage 
along Long Lake Road, but since the Ordinance measures the lot width at the front 
setback, Lot A is slightly larger than Parcel B. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they could add Parcels C and D if they wanted to. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that they couldn’t do that until they found some other usable frontage to 
create Parcel C.  Once Nada was extended, they would have the option to do that. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they could put in homes that were substantially smaller than other 
homes in the area. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the minimum size of homes in R-1C Zoning is either 1,200 or 1,400 
square feet.  Mr. Stimac said that he thought that the homes to the west were 
substantially larger than that requirement.  Due to the cost of land and the desire of 
builders to have a certain ratio of house cost to land cost, you rarely see homes that are 
constructed at the minimum square footage allowed. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what size homes the petitioners are planning to construct. 
 
Mr. Siavrakas said that the intention is to build the same size homes that are currently in 
the area.  Going back to land costs it does not pay to put in smaller homes.  Mr. 
Siavrakas said that if they do develop the other half of the parcel, they would put in 
some type of subdivision control and make sure that those homes are consistent with 
the other homes in the area.  Mr. Siavrakas also stated that he had a site plan of the 
area and the lots to the west are identical in width to this request. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Dennis Siavrakas of Bryden Homes, 660 E. Long Lake, relief of the 
Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land that will result in one lot that is 83.51’ wide 
and the other lot 83.37’ wide, where Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires 
a minimum lot width of 85’ in the R-1C Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is consistent with the existing development in this area. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 29, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 

• Variance request is minor. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Absent a variance, conformance is unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he would like to stipulate that Parcel B has to be developed as a 
single-family residential development. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to amend the original motion to include the stipulation that Parcel B must be 
developed as single-family residential. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked if the developer would have to come back to this Board if they 
decided they wanted to develop this property in another way. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that if they wished to do anything other than single-family residential, 
they would have to have the property re-zoned.  The record would indicate that this 
Board granted the variance with the stipulation that the property be developed as single-
family residential. 
 
Mr. Stimac clarified with the Board that the motion would not preclude the petitioner 
from developing site condominiums as long as they were detached single-family 
residential units. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that was his intention. 
 
Vote to amend original motion. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert, Bartnik, Clark, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO AMEND MOTION CARRIED 
 
MOVED,  to grant Dennis Siavrakas of Bryden Homes, 660 E. Long Lake, relief of the 
Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land that will result in one lot that is 83.51’ wide 
and the other lot 83.37’ wide, where Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires 
a minimum lot width of 85’ in the R-1C Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is consistent with the existing development in this area. 
• Variance request is minor. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                 JULY 29, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 

• Absent a variance, conformance is unnecessarily burdensome.  
• Property to be developed as Single-Family Residential. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Lambert 
Absent: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Wright from tonight’s meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Lambert, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. WRIGHT CARRIED 
 
Mrs. Gies informed the Board that she would be out of town for the meeting of August 
19, 2008. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Matthew Kovacs, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD     FINAL MINUTES                            August 12, 2008  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

Minutes for Tuesday, August 12, 2008 
 
 

I. Call to Order 7:10 pm 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Michelle Haight 
    Karen Yelder 
    Kelly Jones 
       William Lawrence 
    Grigore Buia 
    Reuben Ellis 
    Lily Huang, Student rep 
    Cindy Stewart, city liaison 
     
  Absent Cathy Francois 
    Mayada Fakhouri 
    Tony Haddad 
 
  Visitors: Faris Alami 

  
III. Approval of Minutes – July 15, 2008  

 
Motion to approve July 15, 2008 minutes by Karen Yelder, seconded by Kelly 
Jones. Approved unanimously.  
 

IV. Correspondence/ Articles 
a. Updated Resource Listing handed out.  

 
b. Michelle has article from Congressman Knollenberg’s blog re: his derogatory 

remarks towards Asians. “Protecting Our Families from Asian Invaders” 
changed to “Protecting our Families from Harmful Products.” Intent was not to 
be derogatory – poor choice of words. Hopefully his office has made amends 
with the groups he upset.   
 

V. Old Business 
a. Troy Daze Ethnicity 

 
  Ethnicity Booths Confirmed: 
   
  EIAB, Peru, Germany, Troy High Chinese Club, Bharatiya Temple, CAPA,  
  NAFFAA, African American Parent Support Group, Filipino American Community  
  Council. Total 12 tables.  
 

Possibilities: Arab Chaldean Council, Japanese Club. No Finland, Poland, 
Buddha, Spanish Club, Can’t reach Taiwan, China.  

   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD     FINAL MINUTES                            August 12, 2008  

 

   
  Ideas to fill tent: floor games, entertainment, Mehendi.  
 
  Student volunteers needed:  
  Friday 3-7 pm, 10 volunteers 

Saturday 10am-2pm, 6 volunteers; 2pm-6pm, 6 volunteers;  
6pm-10pm, 6 volunteers  

  Sunday 12pm-4pm, 4 volunteers; 4pm-8pm, 6 volunteers 
 
  Passports: 

Mayada said the Arab Chaldean Council will donate passports. Michelle will give 
Cindy the contact for a company that sells stamps from countries. Also, get fact 
sheets from each county to hand out. Flags have been delivered. Maps to display. 
Display board? Instruments – Michelle. 

 
  Kelly stressed the importance for EIAB to play an active role at Troy Daze  
  Ethnicity.  
 

Poster contest: Michelle is lining up judges for the Poster Contest. No child of EIAB 
is allowed to win.  
 
 
b. African American Support Group 
 
Seminar, Monday August 11th at Baker – 60 people in attendance, broke into 
support groups – example, SAT Prep class, Math help, Tutoring Assistance.  
 
Teachers from Troy Schools as speakers – great motivational speakers and 
awesome information.  
 
August 5th there was an activity – bowling at Troy Lanes, 80 parents and children 
attended.  
 
Next meeting is September 8th at Troy School District Service Center Building, 
7:30-9 pm.  
 
 
c. Troy School District Updates 

 
Elementary school – Kelly is finalizing her presentation for PTOs/PTAs. Date is 
unconfirmed.  Information includes statistics, EIAB Mission & Goals. Kelly will 
share this info for the High School presentations.  
 
High Schools – Michelle will help Karen with high school presentations to PTOs.  
Monday, August 18th is the new teacher orientation. Michelle will be out of town so 
Mayada will work with Padma to present. New Director of Curriculum will give 
cultural cohesiveness presentation after Padma and Mayada. Michelle will include 
her new cultural connection calendar to her teachers, as well as Teaching 
Tolerance materials.  Cindy has handouts ready for Mayada. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD     FINAL MINUTES                            August 12, 2008  

 

 
 
Michelle (EIAB) and Padma (TIG) are coordinating training for School 
Administrators.  Working on Professional Development for 52 of District’s 
Administrators.  Dates are: October 22, December 10, March 18, April 22 (locations 
to be announced). They will break into groups, 6 voices – Arab, Jewish, Muslim, 
African, Indian, and Chinese.  

 
There will be two presenters at each workshop. Hopefully next year they can 
include teachers. Possible to include City Administrators/Employees in a similar 
workshop in the future? 

 
VI. New Business 

a. Sterling Heights Diversity Dinner September 18th at Ike’s Family Dining on Van 
Dyke, Sterling Heights. $30/ticket.  
 

b. Cultural Brochures –  
 
Michelle wants us to put together a brochure, “Faces of Troy,” to highlight some 
cultural groups and provide information, customs, religions, stores/restaurants, 
cultural holidays, and history.  
 
Use photos of actual city residents. Example, Arab, Chinese, and Indian. Project 
done by the end of 2008. 

  
VII. Public Comment 

a. Faris Alami: Visit, xology.com, he has an article “Bridging Cultural Differences.”  
Also wrote an article for the Oakland Press, “Understanding the Changing 
Needs of the Me Generation.” 
 

VIII. Motion to adjourn 8:05 pm, by Michelle Haight and seconded by Reuben Ellis.  
 
 

  Next Meeting Tuesday,   September 2, 2008 at 7 pm  
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on August 12, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica John J. Tagle 
Robert Schultz Wayne Wright 
Thomas Strat 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck  (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
 

Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-08-094 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Maxwell, Tagle and Wright are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
Absent:  Maxwell, Tagle, Vleck (arrived 7:33 pm), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Schultz announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval and 
recommending actions.  He said the petitioner has the option to request 
postponement of an item prior to deliberation by the Planning Commission. 
 
[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:33 p.m.] 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-08-095 
Moved by:  Strat 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Tagle, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. MINUTES – July 22, 2008 Special/Study Meeting 

 
Resolution # PC-2008-08-096 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 22, 2008 Special/Study meeting as 
submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Tagle, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 359) – Link School of the Arts, 
North side of Rankin, East of Rochester Road, Section 34, M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
special use request and parking reduction, and reported it is the recommendation of 
City Management to approve the application as submitted.   
 
Terence Bilovus of Mandall Bilovus Lenderman & Associates, P.C., 4082 John R, 
Troy, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Bilovus indicated the petitioner 
would like to move forward with the request this evening.   
 
Mr. Strat disclosed his association with Mr. Bilovus but indicated he has no financial 
interest in the project.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

A brief discussion followed as relates to: 

 Designation of two-way drive on site plan.  

 Number of parking spaces for recreation use. 

 Storm water management.  
 
Resolution # PC-2008-08-097 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces for the indoor commercial recreation facility and 
industrial building to 36, when a total of 84 spaces are required on the site based on 
the off-street parking space requirements for industrial and indoor commercial 
recreation uses, as per Article XL.  This 48-space reduction meets the standards of 
Article 40.20.12. 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 28.30.09 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested 
for the proposed Link School of the Arts, located on the north side of Rankin, east of 
Rochester in Section 34, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Tagle, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 731) – Shell Gas Station / Tim 

Horton’s Restaurant, Southeast corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road (3990 
Rochester Road), Section 23, From B-1 (Local Business) to H-S (Highway Service) 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the request as submitted.  He noted it is prudent professional community 
planning advice to consider acquisition and consolidation of abutting properties to 
create a larger redevelopment site.  Mr. Miller also identified the trend for gasoline 
service stations to provide retail and food service.  Mr. Miller addressed a detailed 
report submitted by the Planning Department relating to recently approved service 
stations that are less than one acre in size.  It was noted those service stations 
listed on the report have no drive-through service. 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that a potential future right of way in the area is irrelevant to the 
Planning Commission deliberation of the proposed rezoning request. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

Leo D. Gonzalez of CRS Commercial Real Estate Services, 550 Forest Avenue, 
Plymouth, was present to represent the petitioner.  He announced that the owner, 
Sam Beydoun of Safeway Oil, was also present, and they would like to go forward 
with the request this evening.   
 
Mr. Gonzalez gave a brief history of subject property and addressed changes in the 
operation of service stations from five to ten years ago.  He addressed the 
investment by Safeway Oil to modify existing stations that would reflect current 
service station trends and would be beneficial to the community.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Savidant announced that a letter of opposition was received in Planning 
Department today, copies of which were distributed to members prior to the 
beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
There was discussion on the proposed use with drive-through service as relates to 
lot size, lot layout, and traffic impact.   
 
Chair Schultz reminded members that the proposed site plan should not be 
considered in the deliberation of the rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez said comments expressed this evening would be taken into 
consideration as well as the best interest of the petitioner and Safeway Oil in the 
redevelopment of the site. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-08-098 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located at the southeast corner of Rochester 
and Wattles, within Section 23, being approximately 0.7 acres in size, be granted.  
 

Yes: Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
No: Ullmann 
Absent: Maxwell, Tagle, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Ullmann said he has difficulties with the request. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT AUGUST 12, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Forsyth asked for further input from members on items of interest to include in 
the Planning Commission reference booklet prepared by the City Attorney.  [There 
was none.] 
 
Mr. Miller addressed: 

 Site Plan application at Sheffield Building; bank with drive-through. 

 Application for PUD #10, Big Beaver and Kilmer. 

 Status of Draft Master Plan. 

 Update on PUD #9, The Pavilions. 

 Rezoning request relating to the rescission of PUD #6, Oasis @ Centennial 
Park. 

 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:16 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\08-12-08 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 

 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30, on Tuesday, August 19, 2008 in Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael Bartnik 
    Kenneth Courtney 
    Glenn Clark 
    Matthew Kovacs 
    David Lambert 
    Thomas Strat 
 
ABSENT:   Marcia Gies 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to excuse Ms. Gies from this meeting as she is out of town. 
 
Yeas:   6 – Clark, Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert, Strat, Bartnik 
Absent:  1 - Gies 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MS. GIES CARRIED   
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JULY 29, 2008 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 29, 2008 as written.  
 
Yeas:   6 – Kovacs, Lambert, Strat, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #6 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked that Item #6 be pulled for discussion. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, that Items #3 through #5 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

2 
 

Item #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Lambert, Strat, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kovacs 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  PSI HOLDINGS, 2525 CROOKS, for relief of the 
6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west and south property lines where 
this property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to have a six-foot high wood fence along the west and south property line where 
it abuts residential zoned property.  This relief was originally granted in 1983, primarily 
because there already was a six-foot high wood fence along the property line and the 
petitioner would have to remove a number of established trees in order to install the 
wall.  This item last appeared before this Board in August 2005 and was granted a three 
(3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no objections 
or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of PSI Holdings, Inc. 2525 Crooks Road, a three (3) year 
renewal of their variance for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along 
the west and south property line where it abuts residential zoned property. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MG ACQUISITIONS, 2555 CROOKS, for relief 
of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the west property line where this 
property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board for relief of the 6’ high masonry screening-wall required along the west 
property line of their site that abuts residential property.  This relief was originally 
granted in 1984 based on the fact that a wood fence from the Somerset Apartment 
complex currently screens the property.  This item last appeared before this Board in 
August 2005 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain 
the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of MG Acquisitions, 2555 Crooks Road, a three (3) year 
renewal of their variance for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along 
the west property line. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  CROOKS OFFICE LLC, 2585 CROOKS, for 
relief to maintain a 6’ high stockade fence in lieu of the decorative masonry screening-
wall required along the west property line of this site where it abuts residential zoned 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board to maintain a 6’ high stockade fence in lieu of the decorative masonry 
screening-wall required along the west property line of their site that abuts residential 
zoned property.  This relief was originally granted in 1981 based on the fact that the 
stockade fence existed and was originally constructed by the Somerset Apartment 
complex and is in the residential zoning to the west.  This item last appeared before this 
Board in August 2005 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions 
remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Crooks Office L.L.C., 2585 Crooks Road, a three (3) 
year renewal of relief granted by this Board to maintain a 6’ high stockade fence in lieu 
of the decorative masonry screening-wall required along the west property line of their 
site that abuts residential zoned property. 
 

• There is an existing 6’ high fence at this location. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #6 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  GOOD DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS, 4755 
ROCHESTER, for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north 
and west property lines where the property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board in regard to a 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the north and west 
property lines of their site that abuts residential zoning.  The Zoning Ordinance requires 
that a 6’ high masonry-screening wall be provided at the zoning boundary. This Board 
has granted this relief since 1985. The Board granted relief allowing the petitioner to 
install an 8’ high steel fence in lieu of the wall based on the fact that the fence suits the 
needs probably as well as, if not better, than the masonry wall.  This item last appeared 
before this Board in August 2005 and was granted a three-year renewal.  The property 
to the north is now zoned R1-T (One Family Attached) but remains vacant.  Other than 
that, conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
Mr. Bartnik explained that he was concerned about the condition of the fence along the 
residential property.  Right now the property is vacant and Mr. Bartnik is concerned 
about granting a three-year renewal at this time.  
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Good Development Holdings, 4755 Rochester Road, an eighteen (18) 
month renewal of relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north 
and west property lines where the property abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• Eighteen months (18) will allow the Board a chance to re-examine this item in 
case building is started on the surrounding property. 

• Eighteen months (18) will allow the Board the opportunity to look at the condition 
of the fence. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Lambert, Strat, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL FOR EIGHTEEN (18) MONTHS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  GARY ABITHEIRA, 3367 ELLENBORO, for 
relief of the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land into two home sites, which will 
result in each having a lot area of 7320 square feet.  Section 30.10.06 of the Zoning 
Ordinance requires 7500 square feet lot area in the R-1E Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Building Department was in receipt of a letter from Mr. 
Abitheira asking that this request be withdrawn. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to note and file the request of Mr. Abitheira to withdraw this item. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Lambert, Strat, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kovacs 
 
ITEM #8 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  MELISSA & BRIAN VANTONGEREN, 5361 
LIVERNOIS, for approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store 
a commercial vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting approval under Section 
43.764.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property.  The Ford F350 Cube Van described in the application does not 
meet the exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that this item had appeared before City Council in 2003 
and received approval for two-years.  In 2006 they applied for a renewal but later 
withdrew their request as they had sold the vehicle.   
 
Mr. Vantongeren stated that they had approached their closest neighbor and also the 
church across the street and no one objects to this vehicle parked on the property.  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed the petitioner that the rules for granting approval have been 
changed and asked the petitioner how they feel they have met the criteria. 
 
Ms. Vantongeren said that the location of the truck is in between two homes and is not 
visible to anyone. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that the truck is not visible from Livernois as it is parked on the 
side of the house and is screened by the existing evergreens and garage. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the petitioner why they did not request approval before they bought 
this vehicle since they were familiar with the restrictions regarding commercial vehicles. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that it was because of the job situation. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that it was a job situation and originally they had parked the 
vehicle at another location, but had to move the truck as problems had developed.  Mr. 
Vantongeren went on to say that it is more convenient to have the truck in this location 
as he leaves for work at approximately 3 A.M. and is gone approximately 16 hours a 
day.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had read the requirements in order to meet approval for this 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that he believes there is one rental location, which is quite far 
from his home and would make it difficult for him to get to the vehicle. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Vantongeren to explain the problems with the previous parking 
location. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that he had parked the vehicle at a friend’s house in Sterling 
Heights, but the City of Sterling Heights had a problem with that so he had to move the 
vehicle.  Mr. Vantongeren stated that it is very difficult to find another location for this 
truck.  Mr. Vantongeren also said that they have spent a lot of money on landscaping 
and felt that this request would be approved as they have made attempt to conceal it 
from passing traffic. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he agrees that the truck is concealed, however, the petitioner has 
to meet Criteria A or B.  The petitioner has not indicated that they have tried to find 
another site to park the vehicle nor has the petitioner demonstrated the practical 
difficulty with adding to their garage. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren stated that they do not have the money to alter the existing garage as 
a lot of his money goes into keeping the truck running.  The option is present but they 
cannot afford it. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they had looked into an alternative location to park this vehicle. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren stated that there are none available in the immediate area. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that he believes the closest one is in Clawson at 15 Mile Road 
and his business takes him north, therefore, this location would not work for him.   
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that they are using $500.00 in gas a week and her husband is 
on the road approximately 15 hours a day. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that he is home in the evening and works Tuesday through 
Saturday.  He leaves at approximately 3 A.M. and gets home at 4:30 P.M. or later. 
 
Mr. Strat informed the petitioner that the Planning Commission had approved another 
location in Troy for the storage of commercial vehicles, and the petitioners could contact 
the Planning Department for the location and number of that facility. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that they do not have the money to pay for outside storage as 
they have just filed for bankruptcy. 
 
Mr. Strat said that his concern is that the vehicle is very visible to the neighbors driving 
along the street and is worried about the quality of the neighborhood.  Mr. Strat also 
said that he understands the hardship the petitioners are under. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not think the location of the truck was that bad, however, 
the petitioners have the burden of meeting the criteria described in the application and 
Mr. Courtney does not believe that the petitioners have met either of the criteria 
described in A or B. 
 
Mr. Lambert said that he would like to postpone this request to give the applicant the 
opportunity to determine which criteria they meet and perhaps they could look into the 
possibility of adding more landscaping. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he believes the petitioner meets the criteria “C”, but needs more 
evidence as to how they meet the criteria described as “A” or “B”.  Mr. Kovacs also said 
that he believes the problem with the landscaping is that the shrubs are young however 
will fill in as they mature.  Mr. Kovacs further stated that there is a telephone pole right 
near the area that the truck is parked. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren stated that they do not have the money to add on to their garage and 
they cannot widen the area because of the telephone pole.  They cannot add to the 
other side of the property as it would be too close to the property line. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they could enlarge the door on the garage. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that the garage was built in 1955 and they are not even sure that 
it is structurally sound.  Mrs. Vantongeren said that recreational vehicles are allowed to 
be parked on residential property and they are three times larger than this truck.  Mrs. 
Vantongeren said that this truck is like a “Dualy” with a cap on it.  They keep up their 
property and do not see why this truck should be a problem. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he understands what the petitioner is saying, but this Board does 
not make up the rules in the City.  It is the job of this Board to enforce the Ordinance.  
The City Code says that people can park recreational vehicles on residential property as 
long as they follow the rules that have been set up by the Code.   
 
Mrs. Vantongeren stated that they cannot afford criteria “A”. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the petitioners needed to look at alternative locations to park this 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren asked where this parking was allowed in Troy. 
 
Mr. Strat suggested that the petitioners contact the Planning Director regarding the 
outside storage of this vehicle.  Mr. Strat also suggested that the petitioners come back 
before the Board after they had examined the criteria required and present the Board 
with evidence that they meet either criteria “A” or “B”. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that they will never be able to meet the criteria described in “A”. 
They filed Chapter 7 bankruptcy two months ago and will not be able to meet “A”. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked how much it costs for outdoor storage. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that it is anywhere between $10.00 and $20.00 a week and they 
are going broke with the cost of gas. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if they had confirmed these prices. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that this Board is asking them to spend more money and they do 
not have the money to spend. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that he is spending approximately $550.00 a week in gas. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if Mr. Vantongeren was self-employed. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that he was. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that he drives to Milford every day. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if they had looked into storage facilities between their home and 
Milford. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that she would have to drive him and go back and pick him up 
and once again costs would go up and they don’t have the money to do this.  They only 
have two vehicles and their other car already has problems. 
 
Mr. Clark asked about the brick wall between their property and the property to the 
west. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that basically it is a brick wall with shrubs on top of the wall.  
There are no windows on that side of the house and the truck is not visible to them. 
 
Mr. Clark also asked about the written approval that had been received and also asked 
if the Church was directly across the street. 
 
Mr. Vantongeren said that he was not aware of who signed the approval and the Church 
is directly across the street from their home. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the approval was in answer to the Public Hearing notices that 
had been sent out and appears that the signatures were from members of the Church 
Board. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that in his opinion the Board is not getting anywhere but would like to 
see this item postponed so that the petitioner could submit something in writing to the 
Board indicating how they meet the criteria described in “A” or “B”. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he agreed with Mr. Courtney and rather than just saying they can’t 
afford to add to the garage, they should submit something in writing that would indicate 
what the cost would be.  Mr. Kovacs said that he felt the petitioner needed to 
demonstrate that an effort had been made to meet the criteria described in the 
application.  Mr. Kovacs further stated that this request by the Board is not 
unreasonable and the petitioner needs to make a real effort to demonstrate to the Board 
what avenues they have explored. 
 
Mr. Strat also suggested that the petitioner show this Board the real costs of meeting 
the criteria. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that the Church is right across the street and they are looking at 
a parking lot and there are cars that go in and out all the time.  This is a residential area 
and the cars park in front on their home.  Mrs. Vantongeren said that she cannot 
understand the concern over their truck. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that this Board is not here to vote on that, however, there are strict 
guidelines that have to be applied to this approval and the petitioner needs to explain to 
the Board how they meet the criteria for approval.  
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that she can give the Board a copy of a letter from the Court 
indicating that they do not have the money to meet the criteria required in “A”.  Mrs. 
Vantongeren said that they explained why they cannot do “A” or “B”. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed the petitioner that lack of money is not a condition of approval. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that the Board is trying to help the petitioner and the petitioner needs to 
take the time and give the Board an indication of how they have made an effort to meet 
criteria “A” or “B”. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that even if they found a place to store the vehicle they do not 
have the transportation or money to get to that place. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that it is up to the petitioner to show this Board that they have made an 
effort to find an alternative location for this vehicle.  Mr. Kovacs said that the petitioner 
has to tell the Board why they cannot move the vehicle to an alternate location.  This 
Board has the power to determine if the alternate parking spot is feasible. 
 
Mr. Strat asked how long the plants have been in place. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that the landscaping has been in place since 2003 and at that 
time everyone said it was fine.  Mrs. Vantongeren said that this State is going down the 
drain and they are lucky that her husband has a job.  Mrs. Vantongeren also stated that 
this property looks ten times better since they have owned it. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked the petitioner if they would like the Board to postpone this request. 
 
Mrs. Vantongeren said that they would, but she does not know how much information 
will be required for them to give to the Board members. 
 
Mr. Kovacs suggested that they speak with Mr. Stimac, as he would be more than 
willing to help them work through this process. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked Mr. Motzny if it would be more appropriate to table action on this 
item or to postpone this request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that technically the motion to postpone would be the acceptable way to 
go.  A motion to table is usually brought up if there is some urgent matter that comes up 
that needs to be addressed. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Lambert 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Melissa and Brian Vantongeren, 5361 Livernois, for 
approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial 
vehicle outside on residential property until the meeting of September 16, 2008. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the time to present the Board with evidence that they have 
made an effort to meet the criteria described in “A” or “B”. 

 
Mr. Clark asked if the petitioner would be able to present the Board with a plan to add 
more landscaping to the property. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he believes the petitioners meet the criteria described in “C” 
however is definitely concerned about evidence regarding “A” or “B”.  Mr. Bartnik also 
stated that the petitioners have done a great job with the property. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Strat, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 
16, 2008 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  CHINNA MIDDELA, 4000 LIVERNOIS, for relief 
of the Ordinance to alter a tenant space within an existing office building for a medical 
office that will result in 36 available parking spaces, where Section 40.21.70 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance requires 43 parking spaces. 
 
In addition, Petitioner is also asking for relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall along 
the east side of the property as required by Section 39.10.01. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter a 
tenant space within an existing office building as a medical office.  Based upon 2,000 
square feet of this building being used for medical offices and the remaining 6,512 
square feet being used for general office, a minimum of 43 parking spaces would be 
required by Section 40.21.70 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  The plans indicate that 
only 36 parking spaces are available on the site. 
 
In addition, Section 39.10.01 requires a 6’ high masonry screen wall along the east 
property line where this site abuts Single Family Residential Zoning.  The petitioners are 
asking for a variance to continue to eliminate this required screen wall. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac also stated that even though this is one address, there are actually two (2) 
petitioners.  Mr. Middela is requesting the variance regarding the parking and Wattles 
Investment Company is requesting relief of requirement regarding the 6’ high masonry 
screen wall along the east side of the property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the property to the north is zoned. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that is in O-1 Zoning. 
 
Mr. Kovacs then asked if they could purchase that property in order to add additional 
parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that definitely was a possibility. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the tenant was requesting the parking variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the tenant is seeking a variance for the parking in order to move his 
medical office into the building.  The owner of the building is asking for the variance 
regarding the wall.  Mr. Stimac also stated that these requests have been combined into 
one Public Hearing however; the Board should address each item separately. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that he was surprised that the owner of the property was not requesting 
the parking variance as the variance runs with the land. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it is his understanding that the owner of the property has authorized 
this tenant to ask for the parking variance.  Mr. Stimac said that in the Board’s 
determination of whether the 36 parking spaces would be sufficient, there may be 
questions on how the tenant plans to use the business, in which case the owner may 
not have the answers. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if this property was in the process of changing ownership. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he believes that this tenant may have a purchase agreement in 
place to purchase the property if approval of the parking is granted. 
 
Mr. Middela was present and he stated he was planning on putting in a dental office. 
 
Mr. Kovacs was surprised that such a large number of parking spaces would be 
required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that 2,000 square feet of the existing building would be used as a 
medical office and the Ordinance requires that medical offices have twice as much 
parking as regular office buildings. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner had considered purchasing the property to the 
north. 
 
Mr. Middela said that he had not.  
 
Mr. Lambert said that when he was on the property, there is a huge area of weeds on 
the northeast corner that is approximately 20’ – 30’ tall high and is very unkempt.  Mr. 
Lambert said that this in an eyesore to the adjoining residential property. 
 
Mr. Michael Larco, of Wattles Investment was present.  Mr. Larco indicated that he 
would go out and look at the property and have the matter taken care of. 
 
Mr. Bartnik addressed a letter from the petitioner dated July 22, 2008 regarding the 
parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Middela was not sure of which letter he was referring to. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that it was written by Information Data Systems and appears to outline 
current parking spaces and also shows proposed parking.  This letter also indicates that 
the petitioner uses fourteen parking spaces at this time. 
 
Mr. Middela said that he had written the letter and this was the current use of the 
property. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that according to that letter the Smile Center would provide parking for 
three parking spaces for the doctors, three employees and seven patients, and 
Information Data Systems required an additional four parking spaces.  Mr. Bartnik 
asked how many dentists were on staff. 
 
Mr. Middela indicated that there was only one dentist at the present time, but he was 
hoping to add more dentists as business increased.  There is a problem that comes and 
goes. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that regarding usage of the Dentist Office, right now there is only the 
need for one parking space for the dentist. 
 
Mr. Brad Hitch, Real Estate Broker, who is helping with the real estate portion of this 
property was present and stated that the letter presented was the worst case scenario 
of how much parking would be required.  Right now they do not need that much parking 
themselves however; the petitioner is hoping to bring in an additional two (2) doctors in 
the future. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked how many examination rooms would be used. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Middela said that right now they plan to use four and hopefully will increase it to six 
rooms in the future. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if these offices were in the existing 2,000 square feet. 
 
Mr. Middela said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Clark said that according to the letter submitted, it has been indicated that only one 
space if required by the Transportation Club and questioned whether there were ever 
customers or delivery trucks that came to this location. 
 
Mr. Hitch said that the office is run by one lady and she only uses this space part time.  
Mr. Hitch went on to say that he has gone by this location several times and the parking 
lot is virtually empty most of the time. 
 
Mr. Clark also asked if Mr. Middela had two legal names.  Mr. Middela said that he goes 
by Sunny Reddy. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Hitch if he had any idea if the property on the north side of this 
location was available. 
 
Mr. Hitch said that he believes this vacant land is owned by the office supply company 
that is located on the north side of the vacant property.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that it is easier to get a variance on parking that is needed, rather 
than on parking that is proposed. 
 
Mr. Hitch said that there is an additional 25’ that goes with this property where the 
parking lot ends, which would allow them to add more parking and they would not have 
to buy any vacant land to the north.  Mr. Hitch also said that he believes this additional 
property was deeded to them. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that they want the variance because they feel they only need 36 
parking spaces and not the 43 that are required.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated that if additional parking was required in the future, they would be 
able to add these parking spaces with the additional land.  
 
Mr. Bartnik addressed the issue of the fence.  Right now there is a walkway that is 
bordered on each side by a split rail fence. 
 
Mr. Larco passed out pictures showing the sidewalk and existing fence.  Mr. Larco said 
that this is a public walk, and basically looks very attractive.  They have added some  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
additional stones and shrubs.  Mr. Larco also said that he believes the wall would be 
less attractive then what exists now. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked where the wall would be. 
 
Mr. Larco said it would be placed on the west side of the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Rajeev Bhalerao, 30 Crestfield was present.  Mr. Bhalerao stated that he wished to 
address the request regarding the screening wall.  Mr. Bhalerao stated that he would 
rather have the wall.  The existing fence needs to be repaired and he would like some 
relief as his home is the first one east of the existing fence.  There are existing 
arborvitaes on the side of the fence closest to his home.  Mr. Bhalerao said that he 
would like some relief from the parking lot next door.   
 
Mr. Courtney clarified that Mr. Bhalerao would rather have a screening wall than the 
existing fence. 
 
Mr. Bhalerao said that his concern was that there would be a higher amount of traffic at 
this site and would like more screening.  There is a nice wall at Rochester and Wattles 
and believes that something of that nature would be acceptable. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Bhalerao would accept the petitioner adding more arborvitae. 
 
Mr. Bhalerao said that would also be acceptable and they had been approached by Mr. 
Thomas Cavanaugh, who said that as the owner of the building, they would put 
additional landscaping in at their side of the property and Mr. Bhalerao would be able to 
do the same on this side of the property.  Mr. Bhalerao said that never happened. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he thought this would be a very small space to put something other 
than a wall.  Mr. Kovacs asked where the wall would go. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it appears that there is approximately 18’ between the edge of the 
sidewalk and the parking lot.  He was not sure where the property line was but felt that 
the wall would go right at the edge of the existing parking lot pavement. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if that really was what the speaker wanted. 
 
Mr. Bhalerao said that he thought a wall would look very nice in this area and felt that 
there was enough room for it to be constructed. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if this was a condominium site or if it was privately owned. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

15 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the properties at 29 and 30 Crestfield are private single-family 
owned lots.  There is an easement at the edge of 30 Crestfield to allow for a sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if a pre-cast fence could be put in that area.  It is masonry, but would be 
pre-cast and is supported by steel poles. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that that type of structure would be allowed by the Ordinance and would 
meet the requirements of Section 39.10.01. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he does respect the opinion of Mr. Bhalerao and would not like to 
look out at a parking lot either. 
 
Ms. Barbara Scofield, 84 Leetonia was present.  Ms. Scofield asked what O-1 Zoning 
was and confirmed that it was not parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that O-1 Zoning is office use and parking comes with that 
designation. 
 
Ms. Scofield stated that she could see where more parking would be required and the 
whole green space that is there now would be used for parking.  Ms. Scofield stated that 
she wants a 6’ high masonry wall if not higher and is tired of looking at a parking lot. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Ms. Scofield if she was in favor of the request for additional parking 
and against the variance for relief of the screening wall. 
 
Ms. Scofield said that she in favor of the parking variance, but not in favor of granting 
the variance for the 6’ high wall. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how the addition of the wall would affect her property. 
 
Ms. Scofield said that she is within 300’ of this site and can see the parking lot from her 
home.  
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that her approval and disapproval have been noted. 
 
Ms. Scofield asked if they would have to come back to the Board if they wanted to add 
more parking. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that if they had the additional property, they would not need to come 
before the Board for a variance.  Mr. Kovacs also pointed out that the 6’ high wall would 
only run the length of the property described in this application. 
 
Ms. Scofield asked what would happen if the other property was developed. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

16 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the vacant piece of property does not require a screen wall at this 
time.  If the property was developed as O-1 Zoning, a screen wall would be required 
where the property abuts residential property.  The other scenario is that if the property 
were developed the owner could come before this Board and request a variance to 
eliminate the screen wall. 
 
Ms. Scofield asked who owns the property at 29 Crestfield. 
 
Mr. Bhalerao said that the home had been foreclosed on and no one is living there at 
this time.   
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
There is one written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the Board could request that the petitioner add additional 
arborvitae. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that as a condition of the variance, the Board can request that the 
petitioner add additional arborvitae on his side of the property, but the Board cannot ask 
them to add additional screening on property that does not belong to them. 
 
Mr. Larco said that he was not sure if this area was dedicated as a personal walkway.  
Mr. Larco said that it would be there preference to add additional arborvitae and would 
be more aesthetically pleasing. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Strat 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Wattles Investment Company, 4000 Livernois for 
relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall required by Section 39.10.01, along the east 
side of the property where it abuts residentially zoned property until the meeting of 
September 16, 2008. 
 

• To give the petitioner the opportunity to discuss other alternatives with the 
adjacent neighbor. 

• To give the petitioner the opportunity to bring in a plan showing additional 
landscaping. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert, Strat 
 
MOVED TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 16, 
2008 CARRIED 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                           AUGUST 19, 2008 

17 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he drives by this parking lot every day and has never seen it full 
and would rather see a variance than require more parking. 
 
Mr. Strat informed the Board that the Planning Commission is in the process of 
reviewing the Master Plan as well as the Zoning Ordinance and has determined that  
they are antiquated, and there are other types of uses that require more parking.  The  
Planning Commission is looking into changes that they will be able to make. There are 
many other sites that have more parking space than what is needed.  Mr. Strat stated 
that he feels this request would be reasonable. 
 
Motion by Strat 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to grant Chinna Middela/Wattles Investment Co., 4000 Livernois, relief of the 
Ordinance to alter a tenant space within an existing office building for a medical office 
that will result in 36 available parking spaces where Section 40.21.70 of the Troy Zoning 
requires 43 parking spaces. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to public interest. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert, Strat 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Motzny informed the Board that the booklets he passed out earlier in the evening 
contained material that applies to this Board and said it will be a quick reference for the 
Board members.  When revisions are made, additions will be provided to the Board. 
Mr. Bartnik asked if this booklet also addressed items brought forward by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that the literature in these books apply only to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals and believes that a book is being compiled that will apply to the Planning 
Commission.   
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:50 P.M. 
 
 
              
       Matthew Kovacs, Chairman 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  AUGUST 26, 2008 

CALL TO ORDER              
 
A meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, 
August 26, 2008 at the Troy Community Center at 7:05 pm.  

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

Members Present:  Mike Gonda 
    Bob Berk 

Sandy Macknis 
    Jeff Stewart 
    Dan O’Brien 

Alison Miller 
    Jim Hattan 
    Jeff Super 
    Bob Preston 
    Sarah Wunderlich, student 
             

City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 
    Bob Kowalski 
    Jeff Biegler 
    Tonya Perry 

 
Others:    Karen Hattan 
    Doris Schuchter 
    Poncho Massaini 
    Kat Davis 

Diana McKay 
Jeff Winiarski 
Lynne Clark 
Steve Wassef 

     
 
 
Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
None 
 
 
Approval of Minutes from July 22, 2008 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-08-23 
Motion by:  Sandy Macknis 
Seconded by:  Jeff Stewart 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  AUGUST 26, 2008 

RESOLVED, that the minutes of July 22, 2008 are approved as submitted  
MOTION CARRIED  
 
New Business 
 
a. Contract Updates –  
 
All information has been entered, purchase orders sent out.  Need to order straw  
bales.  City Council approved the fireworks and Police Explorer’s contracts on  
August 25, 2008.  The City of Madison Heights called and asked us to be aware  
that Mad Bomber shorted them shells this year.  Tonya Perry said the Fire  
Department would try to count shells.  They discovered a problem with other  
companies selling shells taken off current jobs. 
 
 
b. 2008 Event Updates –  
 
Car Dealers are coming in; will need orange fences.   
 
Cutest Toddler/Infant:  there are only 30 entries to date. 
 
Mike Conners, Boy Scout project was rejected (games for Kids Corner). 
 
Sandy reported she has 245 student volunteers from the high schools; she will 
go to Troy Youth Council to recruit a few more. 
 
Pickle Ball:  There is a request to have an event at Troy Daze, but they felt it was 
too soon to pull off the event.  Maybe next year. 
 
Balloons and brochure have been ordered. 
 
The EthniCity Tent is full.  All Talent Shows are full. 
 
Parade:  Do we need a parade meeting regarding traffic?  It’s the same 
route/similar groups, but the time has changed to 10 am.  The Grand Marshal 
has not been chosen yet.  Troy and Athens Marching Bands are all set.  The 
Troy High Football Team will carry the international flags.  There is a need for 5-6 
more adult volunteers to help the day of the parade.  Need to check with Danielle 
Cover to see if the Miss Troy winners will be on the float.  Need a six-seater for 
school board members.  Mayor and Council will ride on golf carts. 
 
Senior Sensation:  Lunch reservations are coming in.  It’s $3 per person this 
year.  The Beaumont Hospital Wellness Fair is set.  Margaret Julian and Diana 
Duluck are working on getting prizes for Bingo.  Coffee will be prepared by Gail 
Moran of the Troy School District. 
Sara Wunderlich, Student Rep, will be an assistant to Jeff Super for shuttles. 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  AUGUST 26, 2008 

 
Mike will pick up 15-20 fire extinguishers. 
 
Generator:  Mad Power is all set.  Jeff Winiarski is all set for electrical.  We are 
using the same diesel fuel provider as last year. 
 
Booths are full.  The Booth meeting will be held Wed, September 3 at 7 pm.  
Need overhead projector for his laptop presentation.  Bob and Lynn will be 
putting layout and packets together this week.  Called Health Department; Kathy 
Fraser will attend the Booth Meeting, if possible.  There is room also on the 
agenda for the Fire and Police Dept.  They will be strict on rules.  One parking 
pass per booth is provided; additional ones on sale.  Wear black shirts to Booth 
Meeting. 
 
Layout:  almost identical to 2007 except outdoor stage moved back (west) almost 
where old pavilion was.  Kids Corner Tents will form a “U” shape.  Entertainment 
Tent was 80x100 E-W, now 80x100 N-S. 
 
Drop Off Area for students is at the garbage dumpster off Northfield Pkwy.  There 
will be a student drop-off sign.  Mike will call Boulan Principal regarding turning 
on the school parking lot lights. 
 
Parking stickers are on sale now.  Cindy will sent note to Tim McAvoy to include 
with school e-mail blast.  Fire Dept. will deliver lawn signs to all Fire Stations & 
the Fire-Police Training Center. 
 
Bob Matlick and Stu Redpath are new Operations Volunteers.  Operations 
working Friday, September 5, 8 am at Boulan Park.  Tents, storage trailers to 
arrive. 
 
Nino Salvaggio is donating fruit, cheese, veggie trays for volunteers on Friday.  
We’ll also have donuts, coffee and chips.  Water and pop are needed for 
volunteers.  50 cases of water; 25 cases of pop (10 regular, 10 diet and 5 clear 
pop).  Needs to be $5-6 a case. Mike and Dan O’Brien will work on this 
 
Sunday, September 7 at 8 am, need volunteers for more setup/signs. 
Monday, September 8, setup/operations starts at 8 am.  Jeff Super fixed and 
painted all the fences. Tuesday, September 9, setup again at 8 am. 
 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-08-24 
Motion by:  Mike Gonda 
Seconded by:  Alison Miller 
 
RESOLVED, that all Troy Daze Advisory Committee members and their 
immediate family members (spouses/children) as well as Troy Daze Committee 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  AUGUST 26, 2008 

Chairs and their immediate family members are not eligible to win any monetary 
awards for Troy Daze related events or competitions. 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Photo Contest:  Steve Wassef introduced himself as assistant to Tom & Tammy 
Duszynski.  Entries are coming in. 
 
Northfield Pkwy will be closed on Saturday between 9:30-11:30 am for the 
Parade. 
 
Waffle Breakfast:  Jonathan Campion is all set.  Saturday and Sunday from  
9 am - 1 pm.  $5 waffle meal for adults/$4 kids meal. 
 
Diana McKay has a coin sorter for Alison to use for cutest infant/toddler contest. 
 
Opening Ceremony/New Citizen Naturalization combined will begin at 6 pm.   
 
Old Business 
 
Police and Fire Explorer contract was approved on August 25, 2008 by the City 
Council. 
 
Adjourn 
 
RESOLUTION # TD-2008-08-25 
Moved by: Alison Miller 
Seconded by:  Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting is adjourned. 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:25 pm. 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   August 27, 2008  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on August 27, 2008 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Disha Bora and Joseph Niemiec called the 
meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Willa Adamo 

Disha Bora (Co chair) 
Geon Woo Kim (Secretary) 
Jason Lee 
Jennifer Liang 
Joseph Niemiec (Co-chair) 
Vikram Prasad 
Sevita Rama  
Shaina Sekhri  
Rachita Singh 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Neil Shaw, Emily Wang, David Wylie 
VISITORS: Sandy Macknis and Jeff Stewart – Troy Daze Committee 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2008-8-12 
 
 Moved by   Prasad 

  Seconded by  Sekhri 
   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of May 28, 2008 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 10 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  3 – Shaw, Wang, Wylie   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitors    
  Sandy Macknis and Jeff Stewart – Troy Daze Committee 
   Presented the history of Troy Daze of the event. 
   Highlighted events for 2008 that include: 
    Volunteer opportunities 
    Entertainment  
    Special needs events 
    Rides and games 
    Reduced parking fees at Comm. Center 
    Parade 
    Fireworks 
 
5. Teens Taking Action  

No Update 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   August 27, 2008  
 

 2

 
6. Troy Daze 

No update. 
 

   
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
 Resolution # TY-2008-8-13 

  Moved by  Kim  
  Seconded by  Rama 

  
RESOLVED that Wang and Wylie are excused. 

  Yes:   10  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   3 – Shaw, Wang, Wylie   
 
       
8. Youth Council Comments – None  

 
9. Public Comments  –  None    
10. Adjournment –   7:47 p.m. 
 
_______________________________________ 
Joseph Niemiec, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: September 24, at 7:00 P.M.  



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e





campbellld
Text Box
J-05





campbellld
Text Box
J-06


	AGENDA: September 8, 2008
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Proclamation – International Day of Peace – September 21, 2008 – Presented to Pastor Manisha Dostert, St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church/ Co-Chair International Day of Peace Event


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Shell Gas Station/Tim Hortons, Southeast Corner of Rochester Road and Wattles Road – (3990 Rochester Road), Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (File Number Z-731)

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: None Scheduled
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations: Downtown Development Authority (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Ethnic Issues Advisory Boar...
	E-3 Informational Brochure for the November 2008 General Election
	E-4 Proposed Resolution to Designate John R Road, from 14 Mile Road to Big Beaver Road as George W. Suarez Gentleman’s Highway
	E-5 Massage Facility Licensing Ordinance

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	a) International Day of Peace – September 21, 2008
	b) Visiting Nurses Association of Southeast Michigan 110th Anniversary – September 8, 2008
	c) National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month – September, 2008

	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Street Light Installation/Replacement
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fire Hose Testing

	F-5 Private Agreement for Granite City Food and Brewery – Project No. 08.911.3
	F-6 Application for Transfer of Class C License to Somerset Collection Limited Partnership
	F-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – August 20, 2008
	F-8 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way – Bryden Land Co., LLC – Sidwell #88-20-15-201-041
	F-9 Citizen Petition Initiated Ballot Language Ratification to Correct Typographical Error as Noted by the State of Michigan Attorney General’s Office
	F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington, Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #20 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-072 – Russell F. Hadley and Jeanette Hadley
	F-11 Agreement between City of Troy and Troy School District for NPDES Permit

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – CJ Mahoney’s, 2511 Livernois – September 22, 2008
	The ProMetal RCT, LLC, 2341 Alger – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – September 22, 2008
	Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – September 22, 2008
	Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc., 1725 John R – Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – September 22, 2008

	G-2 Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Traffic Committee/Final – April 16, 2008
	Youth Council/Final – May 28, 2008
	Historic District Commission/Final – June 16, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 2, 2008
	Historic District Commission/Final – July 15, 2008
	Traffic Committee/Final – July 16, 2008
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – July 22, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – July 29, 2008
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – August 12, 2008
	Planning Commission/Draft – August 12, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – August 19, 2008
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – August 26, 2008
	Youth Council/Draft – August 27, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted
	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Ann Blizzard from Ann O’Neill Commending Junior Lifeguard Course Instructors Kyle Curry and Daina Wolner
	Letter to Carol Anderson from Sandy Kush Commending Jake Pilat and Aaron Spokaeski for Assistance with Golf Outing
	Memorandum to Chief Craft from Lt. Hay Regarding Phone Call from Diane Jones in Appreciation of the Compassion of Sgt. Kowalski and Officers Livingston and Rockafellow
	Letter to Chief Craft from Gregory Harless, President FBI National Academy Associates – Michigan Chapter, Commending the Efforts of Sgt. Bjork, Officers Fitzpatrick and Kaptur and Lynn McDaniels during Recent Seminars
	Letter of Thanks to Troy City Council from Mikayla and Karen Anderson Regarding the Sponsorship of the Miss Troy and Little Miss Troy Pageants

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Department of Attorney General Regarding Proposed Charter Amendment by Initiatory Petition
	J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Office of the Governor Regarding Proposed Charter Amendment by Initiatory Petition

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



